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ORDER OF REFERENCE
Tuesday, May 22, 1984

Ordered,—That a Sub-committee of the Standing Commit-
tee on External Affairs and National Defence be established
for the purpose of hearing witnesses on Bill C-32, An Act to
establish the Canadian Institute for International Peace and
Security; and

That the Sub-committee be composed of Seven (7) Mem-
bers of the Committee including four (4) representatives from
the Liberal Party, two (2) from the Progressive Conservative
Party and one (1) from the New Democratic Party and seven
(7) Alternates of the Committee including four (4) representa-
tives from the Liberal Party, two (2) from the Progressive
Conservative Party and one (1) from the New Democratic
Party to be appointed by the Chairman in consultation with
the Party critics on the Committee; and

That the Chairman of the Sub-committee be authorized to
hold meetings, to receive and authorize the printing of
evidence when a quorum is not present, provided that no fewer
than three (3) members are present; and

That the Sub-committee be empowered to send for persons,
papers and records, to sit while the House is sitting, to sit
during periods when the House stands adjourned, to print from
day to day such papers and evidence as may be ordered by it.

ATTEST

ORDRE DE RENVOI
Le mardi 22 mai 1984

Il est ordonné,—Qu’un Sous-comité du Comité permanent
des affaires extérieures et de la défense nationale soit institué
en vue d’entendre des témoins relativement au projet de loi
C-32, Loi constituant I'Institut canadien pour la paix et la
sécurité mondiales; et

Que le Sous-comité se compose de sept (7) membres du
Comité, y compris quatre (4) représentants du parti libéral,
deux (2) représentants du parti progressiste conservateur et un
(1) représentant du parti néodémocrate; que le Sous-comité se
compose également de sept (7) substituts du Comité, y compris
quatre (4) représentants du parti libéral, deux (2) représen-
tants du parti progressiste conservateur et un (1) représentant
du parti néodémocrate que désignera le président, avec I'avis
des critiques des partis qui siégent au Comité; et

Que le président du Sous-comité ait le pouvoir de tenir des
réunions, de recevoir des témoignages et d’en autoriser
I'impression en |’absence du quorum, a condition que trois (3)
membres au moins soient présents; et

Que le Sous-comité soit autorisé a réclamer des personnes,
des documents et des dossiers, a siéger pendant les séances et
les ajournements de la Chambre, et a faire imprimer au jour le
jour les documents et les témoignages que celle-ci exigera.

ATTESTE

Le greffier du Comité

Robert Vaive

The Clerk of the Committee
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

TUESDAY, MAY 22, 1984
(1)

[Text]

The Sub-committee of the Standing Committee on External
Affairs and National Defence on the Canadian Institute for
International Peace and Security met at 3:36 o’clock p.m. this
day, for the purpose of organization.

Members of the Sub-committee present: Mrs. Beauchamp-
Niquet, Messrs. Dupras, Kilgour.

Alternates of the Sub-committee present: Messrs. Massé,
McRae, Stewart, Watson.

Other Members present: Messrs. Landers, McLean.

In attendance: From the Parliamentary Centre for Foreign
Affairs and Foreign Trade: Mr. Roger Hill.

Witnesses: From the United Nations Association in Canada:
Mr. Firdaus Kharas, Executive Director; Dr. John Sigler,
Member. From “Le Centre québécois de relations interna-
tionales”: Mr. Napoléon LeBlanc, Director.

The Clerk of the Sub-committee presided over the election
of the Chairman.

Mr. Kilgour, seconded by Mr. McRae, moved,—That Mr.
Dupras do take the Chair of this Sub-committee as Chairman.

The question being put on the motion, it was agreed to.
The Chairman took the Chair.

On motion of Mrs. Beauchamp-Niquet, it was agreed,—
That Mr. Kilgour be elected as Vice-Chairman of this Sub-
committee.

On motion of Mr. Kilgour, it was agreed,—That the Sub-
Committee print 1,000 copies of its Minutes of Proceedings
and Evidence.

On Motion of Mr. Kilgour, it was agreed,—That reasonable
travelling and living expenses be paid to witnesses who have
been requested to appear before the Sub-committee.

The Sub-committee proceeded to the consideration of its
Order of Reference from the Standing Committee on External
Affairs and National Defence which reads as follows:

TUESDAY, MAY 22, 1984

Ordered,—That a Sub-committee of the Standing Commit-
tee on External Affairs and National Defence be established
for the purpose of hearing witnesses on Bill C-32, An Act to
establish the Canadian Institute for International Peace and
Security; and

That the Sub-committee be composed of seven (7) Members
of the Committee including four (4) representatives from the
Liberal Party, two (2) from the Progressive Conservative Party
and one (1) from the New Democratic Party and seven (7)
Alternates of the Committee including four (4) representatives
from the Liberal Party, two (2) from the Progressive Con-
servative Party and one (1) from the New Democratic Party to

PROCES-VERBAL

LE MARDI 22 MAI 1984
(1

[Traduction)

Le Sous-comité du Comité permanent des affaires extérieu-
res et de la défense nationale sur I'Institut canadien pour la
paix et la sécurité mondiales tient, ce jour 4 15 h 36, sa séance
d’organisation.

Membres du Sous-comité présents: M™ Beauchamp-
Niquet, MM. Dupras, Kilgour.

Substituts du Sous-comité présents: MM. Massé, McRae,
Stewart, Watson.

Autres députés présents: MM. Landers, McLean.

Aussi présent: Du Centre parlementaire pour les affaires
étrangeres et le commerce extérieur: M. Roger Hill.

Témoins: De I'Association des Nations unies au Canada:
M. Firdaus Kharas, directeur exécutif; M. John Sigler,
membre. Du Centre québécois de relations internationales: M.
Napoléon LeBlanc, directeur.

Le greffier du Sous-comité préside I’élection du président.

M. Kilgour, appuyé par M. McRae, propose,—Que M.
Dupras assume la présidence du Sous-comité.

La motion est mise aux voix et adoptée.
Le président assume la présidence du Sous-comité.

Sur motion de M™ Beauchamp-Niquet, i/ est convenu,—
Que M. Kilgour assume la vice-présidence du présent Sous-
comité.

Sur motion de M. Kilgour, i/ est convenu,—Que le Sous-
comité fasse imprimer 1000 exemplaires de ses Proces-
verbaux et témoignages.

Sur motion de M. Kilgour, i/ est convenu,—Que les témoins
qui sont priés de comparaitre devant le Sous-comité soient
remboursés des frais de déplacement et de séjour jugés
raisonnables.

Le Sous-comité procéde a I’étude de l'ordre de renvoi regu
du Comité permanent des affaires extérieures et de la défense
nationale dont voici lecture:

LE MARDI 22 MAI 1984

Il est ordonné,—Qu’un Sous-comité du Comité permanent
des affaires extérieures et de la défense nationale soit institué
en vue d’entendre des témoins relativement au projet de loi
C-32, Loi constituant I'Institut canadien pour la paix et la
sécurité mondiales; et

Que le Sous-comité se compose de sept (7) membres du
Comité, y compris quatre (4) représentants du parti libéral,
deux (2) représentants du parti progressiste conservateur et un
(1) représentant du parti néodémocrate; que le Sous-comité se
compose également de sept (7) substituts du Comité, y compris
quatre (4) représentants du parti libéral, deux (2) représen-
tants du parti progressiste conservateur et un (1) représentant
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be appointed by the Chairman in consultation with the Party
critics on the Committee; and

That the Chairman of the Sub-committee be authorized to
hold meetings, to receive and authorize the printing of
evidence when a quorum is not present, provided that no fewer
than three (3) members are present; and

That the Sub-committee be empowered to send for persons,
papers and records, to sit while the House is sitting, to sit
during periods when the House stands adjourned, to print from
day to day such papers and evidence as may be ordered by it.

The witnesses made opening statements and answered
questions.

At 4:50 o’clock p.m., the Sub-committee adjourned until
8:00 o’clock p.m. this evening.

du parti néodémocrate que désignera le président, avec I'avis
des critiques des partis qui siégent au Comité; et

Que le président du Sous-comité ait le pouvoir de tenir des
réunions, de recevoir des témoignages et d'en autoriser
I'impression en I’absence du quorum, a condition que trois (3)
membres au moins soient présents; et

Que le Sous-comité soit autorisé a réclamer des personnes,
des documents et des dossiers, a siéger pendant les séances et
les ajournements de la Chambre, et 4 faire imprimer au jour le
jour les documents et les témoignages que celle-ci lui deman-
dera de produire.

Les témoins font des déclarations préliminaires et répondent
aux questions.

A 16 h 50, le Sous-comité interrompt les travaux jusqu'a 20
heures.

Le greffier du Sous-comité

Michael Lukyniuk

Clerk of the Sub-committee
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(Recorded by Electronic Apparatus) (Enregistrement électronique)

[Texte] [Traduction)

Tuesday, May 22, 1984
® 1537

The Clerk of the Committee: Hon. Members, I see a
quorum.

Your first item of business is to elect a chairman. I invite
you to make a motion to that effect.

Mr. Kilgour: On a point of order, Mr. Clerk. Before we do
s0, it is my understanding that in the interests of showing
complete nonpartisanship in these hearings we would have a
Liberal chairman of the other wing of our committee and a
P.C. chairman of this subcommittee of the External Affairs
committee. But I gather from discussions that this is—what is
the proper term?—not acceptable to the Liberal members of
the committee. As anybody who can count above two can see
that they will have their way on that issue, I hope that
tomorrow, sir, my colleagues from the Liberal party might be
disposed to show their nonpartisanship on the matter by having
a chairman of each party, one sitting on the full committee and
one sitting on the subcommittee.

Perhaps it would be a courtesy for me to propose that Mr.
Dupras be chairman today, since he has indicated that his
colleagues would like him to be chairman of the committee
today.

Mr. McRae: I second that.

The Clerk: It is moved by Mr. Kilgour and seconded by Mr.
McRae that Mr. Dupras take the Chair of this subcommittee
as chairman.

Motion agreed to.

The Clerk: Mr. Dupras, I invite you to take the Chair.

The Chairman: Thank you; and thank you very much,
colleagues.

Madam Beauchamp-Niquet.

Mme Beauchamp-Niquet: J’invoque le Réglement, monsieur
le président.

Le président: Madame Beauchamp-Niquet invoque le
Reéglement.

Mme Beauchamp-Niquet: Est-il opportun de proposer
I’élection d’un vice-président ou est-ce prématuré?

Le président: On devrait peut-étre poursuivre les conversa-
tions déja entreprises dans le but de considérer I’élection d’un
membre du Parti progressiste conservateur a la vice-présidence
du Sous-comité, madame.

Mme Beauchamp-Niquet: Mon recours au Réglement allait
en ce sens, monsieur le président. Tout d’abord, je désire vous
féliciter pour votre nomination et ensuite, j'aimerais proposer

Le mardi 22 mai 1984

Le greffier du Comité: Honorables députés, je vois que nous
avons maintenant le quorum.

La premiére question a I'ordre du jour est I’élection d’un
président. Je vous invite maintenant a présenter des motions a
cette fin. -

M. Kilgour: J'invoque le Réglement, monsieur le greffier. Je
crois comprendre que pour permettre d’avoir un climat non
partisan au cours de nos audiences, nous aurions un président
libéral pour l'autre aile de notre Comité et un président
conservateur pour ce Sous-comité du Comité permanent des
affaires extérieures. Mais on m’a donné a entendre que cette
fagcon de procéder serait—comment dirais-je?—inacceptable
aux députés libéraux du Comité. N’importe qui qui sait
compter doit comprendre qu’ils vont obtenir ce qu’ils désirent,
mais j’espére que demain, mes collégues du Parti libéral seront
peut-étre préts 4 nous montrer leur esprit non partisan en
permettant d’avoir un président représentant chaque parti,
dont 'un présiderait le comité plénier et I’autre, le sous-comité.

Je pourrais peut-étre proposer que M. Dupras soit élu
président du Sous-comité, puisqu’il a indiqué que ses collégues
voudraient qu’il le soit.

M. McRae: J’appuie la proposition.

Le greffier: Il est proposé par M. Kilgour, appuyé par M.
McRae, que M. Dupras occupe le fauteuil 4 titre de président
de ce Sous-comité.

La motion est adoptée.

Le greffier: Monsieur Dupras, je vous invite 4 occuper le
fauteuil.

Le président: Merci, et je voudrais également remercier mes
collégues.

Madame Beauchamp-Niquet.

Mrs. Beauchamp-Niquet: On a point of order, Mr. Chair-
man.

The Chairman: You have the floor for your point of order,
Madam Beauchamp-Niquet.

Mrs. Beauchamp-Niquet: Would it be appropriate to
propose the election of a vice-chairman at this time, or would
that be premature?

The Chairman: Perhaps we should pursue the discussion
already begun with a view to considering the election of a
member of the Conservative Party to the Vice-Chairmanship
of the sub-committee.

Mrs. Beauchamp-Niquet: Indeed, my point of order was in
relation to that very point, Mr. Chairman. First of all, I would
like to congratulate you for your appointment and I would also
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[Texte]
que M. Kilgour soit nommé & la vice-présidence du Sous-
comité.

M. Massé: J'appuie la proposition de M™ Beauchamp-
Niquet.

Le président: Y a-t-il d’autres propositions?

Je déclare mon collégue, M. David Kilgour, élu a la vice-
présidence du Sous-comité.

Monsieur Massé.

M. Massé: De fagon 4 ce que les choses se déroulent bien
jusqu’a la fin de I’étude du projet, je suggére que I’on garde nos
remarques pour le restaurant parlementaire.

The Chairman: My dear colleagues, I wish to congratulate
the vice-chairman for his election, and I wish to thank you very
much for electing me the Chairman of this subcommittee.

® 1540

As you know, we have other business to attend to before we
meet the first witnesses. I would like to recall that the quorum
is four, but we can hear testimony and print evidence with
three members. The vice-chairman has been elected.

The order of reference, as you know, is to consider Bill C-32.

Do we have a motion to authorize the printing of 1,000
copies of the Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence?

Mr. Kilgour: So moved.
Motion agreed to.

The Chairman: We also have to deal with the expenses of
the different witnesses we will be meeting, so would someone
move to agree to recommend that travelling expenses be paid?

Mr. Kilgour: I so move.
Motion agreed to.

The Chairman: Thank you. In no time we have dealt with
the election and the organization of this committee.

We are delighted to welcome as the first witnesses a group
from the United Nations Association in Canada. Mr. Fridaus
James Kharas is the Executive Director of the United Nations
Association in Canada. As such he is in charge of the associa-
tion’s general disarmament program and is a representative of
the Consultative Group on Disarmament and Arms Control
Affairs.

I do not know whether I should read all of Mr. Kharas’s
biography. Let me indicate, nevertheless, that Mr. Kharas was
born in India and received his Indian School Certificate from
Cambridge University and an honorary high school diploma
from Pennsylvania. He received his B.A. in political science
from Thiel College in Pennsylvania and served as an intern
with the United Nations Information Centre in Washington,

[Traduction]

like to propose that Mr. Kilgour be appointed Vice-Chairman
of the sub-committee.

Mr. Massé: I second the proposal made by Madam Beau-
champ-Niquet.

The Chairman: Are there any other nominations?

I hereby declare my colleague, Mr. David Kilgour, elected
Vice-Chairman of the sub-committee.

Mr. Massé.

Mr. Massé: In order to ensure that things go well until we
have completed our work, I suggest we keep our comments for
the Parliamentary Restaurant.

Le président: Chers collégues, jaimerais féliciter le vice-
président de sa nomination et vous remercier en méme temps
de m’avoir élu au poste de président du Sous-comité.

Comme vous le savez, nous avons certaines questions a
régler avant d’entendre notre premier témoin. Je tiens a vous
rappeler que le quorum est de quatre membres, mais pour
entendre et imprimer les témoignages, seulement trois
membres devront étre présents. Le vice-président a déja été
élu.

Comme vous le savez, notre ordre de renvoi concerne 1’étude
du projet de loi C-32.

Pourrais-je recevoir une motion pour autoriser I'impression
de 1,000 exemplaires des procés-verbaux et témoignages?

M. Kilgour: J’en fais la proposition.
La motion est adoptée.

Le président: Nous devons également régler la question des
frais des divers témoins qui vont comparaitre devant nous;
alors, j’aimerais que quelqu’un propose que des frais raisonna-
bles de déplacement et de séjour soient versés aux témoins
convoqués.

M. Kilgour: J’en fais la proposition.
La motion est adoptée.

Le président: Merci. Nous avons déja réglé toutes les
questions concernant I’élection du président et du vice-
président et de I'organisation du comité.

Nous sommes ravis d’accueillir, a titre de premiers témoins,
un groupe représentant I’Association canadienne pour les
Nations Unies. M. Fridaus James Kharas est directeur
exécutif de ’association. A ce titre, il dirige le programme de
désarmement général de I’association et il est également
représentant du groupe consultatif des affaires relatives au
désarmement et au contréle des armes.

Je ne crois pas que je devrais lire au complet la biographie
de M. Kharas. Mais j’aimerais vous indiquer que M. Kharas
est né en Inde et qu'il a regu son certificat d’études indiennes
de I'Université de Cambridge, ainsi qu’'un diplome d’études
secondaires honoraire en Pennsylvanie. Il a regu sa licence en
sciences politiques du Collége Thiel, en Pennsylvanie, et a
travaillé 4 titre d’interne au Centre d’information des Nations
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D.C. Later, as a research analyst with the Pennsylvania House
of Representatives, he advised the Monority Caucus on
international issues affecting the state. He received his M.A. in
international affairs from the Norman Paterson School of
International Affairs at Carleton University here in Ottawa.

In September 1979 Mr. Kharas founded an Ottawa-based
political risk analysis company, of which he was the president
until 1982. In this capacity he offered consulting services to
international business on foreign markets. Mr. Kharas has also
done some writing on the questions of political refugees,
human rights, political stability and international economic
issues.

You will find that Mr. Kharas is fully qualified to be our
first witness, and I know that you are all very anxious to hear
his remarks, so I will invite Mr. Kharas to join me, please. I
understand that Dr. John Sigler accompanies Mr. Kharas and
I would invite Mr. Sigler to join me.

I understand that you have some brief remarks and you will
articulate these remarks to the members of the subcommittee.
Do you wish to read your remarks?

Mr. Firdaus Kharas (Executive Director, United Nations
Association in Canada): Please.

The Chairman: How long do you think this will take?
Mr. Kharas: Fifteen minutes.

The Chairman: Okay, because the members will be most
anxious to put questions to you.

Mr. Kharas: I will not be longer than that.

The Chairman: Okay. Mr. Kharas, you are invited to read
your remarks.

Mr. Kharas: Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman and
members of the committee.

We want to begin by thanking you for this opportunity to
appear before the committee today on your hearings on an Act
to establish the Canadian Institute for International Peace and
Security. We want to congratulate you on your wisdom in
deciding to hear witnesses and review submissions from a wide
variety of organizations and individuals interested in the
establishment of this: new institute. We will follow the
testimony of other witnesses with keen interest, as we have
followed the debates in the House of Commons that preceded
your hearings.

Mr. Chairman, the United Nations Association in Canada
welcomes the establishment of an independent institute for
research into the problems of international peace and security
with particular emphasis on defence, arms control and
disarmament issues. We see the establishment of this institute
as a natural culmination of 40 years of Canadian foreign

[Translation)

Unies, &4 Washington. Plus tard, a titre d’analyste de recherche
pour la Chambre des représentants de la Pennsylvanie, il a
conseillé le caucus minoritaire sur les affaires internationales
touchant I’Etat. Il a regu sa maitrise en affaires internationales
de I’Ecole des affaires internationales Norman Paterson de
'université Carleton, ici, 4 Ottawa.

En septembre 1979, M. Kharas a fondé une compagnie, a
Ottawa, qui s’est donné comme mission I’analyse des risques
politiques, et il a agi 4 titre de président de cette compagnie
jusqu’en 1982. A ce titre, il a fourni des services de consulta-
tion aux entreprises qui font du commerce d I’étranger. M.
Kharas est également I’auteur d’un -certain nombre de
documents qui portent sur les réfugiés politiques, les droits de
la personne, la stabilité politique et des questions d’économie
internationale.

Vous allez constater que M. Kharas ne pourrait pas étre
mieux placé pour étre notre premier témoin, et comme je sais
que vous attendez avec impatience 'occasion d’entendre ses
propos, je vais maintenant inviter M. Kharas 4 me joindre ici,
a la table. Je crois comprendre que M. John Sigler accompa-
gne M. Kharas aujourd’hui, et j’inviterais M. Sigler & nous
rejoindre a la table également.

Je crois que vous aimeriez faire quelques remarques
liminaires aux membres du sous-comité. Désirez-vous lire votre
déclaration liminaire?

M. Firdaus Kharas (directeur exécutif, Association
canadienne pour les Nations Unies): Oui, si vous me le
permettez.

Le président: Cela vous prendra combien de temps environ?
M. Kharas: Environ 15 minutes.

Le président: D’accord, car les membres ont hite de vous
poser des questions.

M. Kharas: Il ne me faudra pas plus de temps que cela.

Le président: D’accord. Monsieur Kharas, je vous invite
maintenant 4 lire votre déclaration liminaire.

M. Kharas: Merci beaucoup, monsieur le président et
honorables membres du comité.

Nous aimerions d’abord vous remercier de nous avoir donné
I’occasion de comparaitre devant le comité aujourd’hui dans le
cadre de votre étude d’une loi qui prévoit la création d’un
Institut canadien pour la paix et la sécurité mondiales. Nous
aimerions vous féliciter de la sagesse de votre décision
d’entendre des témoins et d’étudier les mémoires d’un grand
nombre de différents organismes et particuliers qui s’intéres-
sent 4 I’établissement de cet institut. C’est avec un intérét treés
vif que nous suivrons les témoignages des autres témoins, tout
comme nous avons suivi les débats 4 la Chambre des commu-
nes avant le début de vos audiences.

Monsieur le président, I’Association canadienne pour les
Nations Unies se réjouit de I'établissement d’un institut
indépendant qui fera des recherches sur des problémes de paix
et de sécurité internationales, en mettant I'accent sur la
défense, le contrdle des armes et le désarmement. Pour nous,
I’établissement de cet institut est I’apogée d’une politique
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policy that has endeavoured to maintain international peace
and security. We hope that the institute will inform, educate
and stimulate enlightened discussion about the most pressing
international issue facing humanity today. We hope the
institute promotes a truly non-partisan, balanced discussion
and presentation based on the broadest possible meaning of the
words “peace” and “security”.

® 1545

Mr. Chairman, it is interesting to note that the words
“international peace and security” are exactly those the
founders of the United Nations system used in the very first
sentence of Article One of the charter of the United Nations,
to describe one of its principle objectives. When W.L. Macken-
zie King, Prime Minister of Canada, signed the United
Nations charter on June 26, 1945, he pledged that Canada
would maintain international peace and security, and to that
end:

To take effective collective measures for the prevention and
removal of threats to the peace, and for the suppression of
acts of aggression or other breaches of the peace, and to
bring about by peaceful means and in conformity with the
principles of justice and international law, adjustment or
settlement of international disputes, or situations, which
might lead to a breach of peace.

The very first resolution of the United Nations General
Assembly, on January 24, 1946, sought the elimination of all
nuclear weapons and other weapons of mass destruction. Since
that time, the arms race has hastened, and we need not recount
for you the terror that faces humanity in the existence of over
50,000 nuclear weapons. Even without the use of nuclear
weapons, it has been estimated that since the founding of the
United Nations, somewhere between 16 and 35 million people
have lost their lives in armed conflicts in over 100 “conven-
tional” wars.

Enormous problems now confront mankind, and each day it
is becoming increasingly difficult to maintain international
peace and security. While the world has become unalterably
interdependent, where the survival of one depends upon the
survival of all, the magnitude and complexities of the issues
that face us, have greatly increased.

The initial period after World War II gave rise to the
idealistic hope that the end of the war might translate into the
maintenance of peace. This has not been the case, and an
almost universal feeling of failure has resulted. Moreover,
there are those who will argue that humanity is closer to the
nuclear holocaust than at any time since the splitting of the
atom. The Secretary General of the United Nations has
warned that we are “perilously close to a new international
anarchy”.

Where is the hope? How will we stop this spiralling arms
race that has resulted in the creation of physical forces which
could destroy this planet more than 14 times over? How will
we stop the proliferation of nuclear weapons to those countries

[Traduction]

étrangére canadienne suivie depuis 40 ans et dont le premier
but était de maintenir la paix et la sécurité internationales.
Nous espérons que l'institut informera, éduquera et suscitera
une discussion intelligente sur le probléme international le plus
pressant qu’éprouve ’humanité aujourd’hui. Nous espérons
également que l'institut pronera des discussions et des exposés
vraiment non partisans et tenant compte de nombreux points
de vue, a partir de la signification la plus large possible des
termes «paix» et «sécuritén.

Monsieur le président, il est intéressant de noter que les
mots «paix et sécurité internationales» reprennent exactement
ceux qu’ont utilisés les fondateurs de I’Organisation des
Nations Unies dans la premiére phrase de I'article un de la
Charte des Nations Unies pour décrire 'un des principaux
objectifs de l'organisation. Lorsque W.L. Mackenzie King,
premier ministre du Canada, a signé la Charte des Nations
Unies, le 26 juin 1945, il a promis que le Canada maintiendrait
la paix et la sécurité internationales et a cette fin:

prendrait des mesures collectives efficaces en vue de
prévenir ou d’éliminer les menaces a la paix et de supprimer
les actes d’agression et les autres atteintes a la paix, et
contribuerait, par des moyens pacifiques et conformément
aux principes de la justice et du droit international, au
réglement des conflits ou situations internationales pouvant
amener une rupture de la paix.

La toute premiére résolution de I’Assemblée générale des
Nations Unies, le 24 janvier 1946, demandait 1’élimination de
toutes les armes nucléaires et autres armes de destruction
massive. Depuis ce temps, la course aux armements n’a fait
que s’accroitre, comme en attestent, faut-il le rappeler, les
50,000 armes nucléaires et plus qui terrorisent I’humanité
actuellement. Méme sans le recours aux armes nucléaires, il a
été établi que depuis la fondation des Nations Unies, de 16 a
35 millions de personnes environ ont perdu la vie lors de
quelque cent guerres «classiques» ou conflits armés.

L’humanité fait actuellement face a des problémes énormes,
de sorte qu’avec chaque jour qui passe, il devient de plus en
plus difficile de maintenir la paix et la sécurité internationales.
Alors que le monde est devenu inéluctablement interdépen-
dant, que la survie des uns dépend de la survie des autres,
I'ampleur et la complexité de nos problémes sont devenues
encore plus grandes.

La période qui a tout de suite suivi la Deuxiéme Guerre
mondiale a suscité un idéalisme qui pouvait faire croire que la
fin de la guerre signifiait la paix. Tel ne fut pas le cas, de sorte
que le monde entier éprouve un sentiment d’échec. D’aucuns
soutiennent que I’humanité est plus prés d'un holocauste
nucléaire qu’en aucun autre temps auparavant depuis la fission
de l’atome. Le secrétaire général des Nations Unies nous a
avertis que nous étions «dangereusement prés d’une nouvelle
¢ére d’anarchie internationale».

Qu’est-ce qui nous permet d’espérer? Comment pouvons-
nous stopper cette course aux armements en spirale qui a
abouti a la création de forces physiques qui peuvent détruire
plus de 14 fois la planéte? Comment pouvons-nous empécher
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achieving such capabilities in the next 25 years? How will we
cap the between $700 million and $1 trillion being spent on
military expenditures, and channel some of those resources
into more productive development schemes? How will we stop
the trade in major conventional weapons in which Third World
countries squander their scarce resources? How will we stop
the potentially new . . .

The Chairman: May [ interrupt you for a few minutes? I
wonder if the interpretation into French is working? It will
only take a few minutes to remedy, sir, unless you want to
make it in French afterwards?

Mr. Khardas: I am afraid I cannot.
® 1550

I am sorry. Go ahead, please.

Mr. Kharas: Mr. Chairman, how will we maintain interna-
tional peace and security? These are the questions for the
institute to ponder. The world is subject to competition from
two ideologically incompatible camps and many of the
inadequacies of the international system stem from this fact.

The organizations and institutions that have evolved over the
last 40 years, such as the United Nations, are but a mirror of
their memberships, and consequently the system that the world
has is probably the system that the world deserves. There is no
world government that has a higher authority or even a
potential higher authority capable of forcing states to act in
some prescribed manner.

There is no panic here or potential panic here, to solve all
international problems. The issues facing the world are much
too large and much too complex to be solved by the current
international system or by the institutions that we have, such
as the United Nations.

Canada, along with others, can contribute to the manage-
ment of international problems, particularly to those that
cannot be effectively dealt with at the national level. The
international problems that the Canadian Institute for
International Peace and Security will be looking into are such
issues.

We, therefore, hope that the institute will place considerable
emphasis on the word “international” in its title. We will be
hearing from many witnesses, some of whom will be bringing
their own agendas.

Allow us to suggest one area of focus for the institute. We
hope that the United Nations system and the process of
international co-operation for which it stands, will be one of
the cornerstones of its activities.

The United Nations is at the major crossroads in its history
in the midst of a very difficult international period. The
institute can go a long way in dispelling the many myths that
exist about the real role and activities of the United Nations

[Translation)

la prolifération des armes nucléaires chez les pays qui sont
capables de s’en doter au cours des 25 prochaines années?
Comment pouvons-nous limiter les 700 millions 4 1 billion de
dollars dépensés au titre de I'armement militaire et canaliser
ces ressources vers des activités de développement plus
productives? Comment pouvons-nous empécher le commerce
des armes classiques importantes dans lequel les pays du Tiers-
Monde gaspillent leurs rares ressources? Comment pouvons-
nous . . .

Le président: Puis-je vous interrompre quelques minutes? Je
me demande si le systéme d’interprétation vers le frangais
fonctionne. Je vais vérifier, si vous le permettez, 4 moins que
vous ne vouliez recommencer en frangais apres.

M. Khardas: Je crains que ce ne soit pas possible.

Poursuivez, je vous prie. Je m’excuse.

M. Kharas: Comment pouvons-nous maintenir la paix et la
sécurité internationales? Ce sont toutes des questions sur
lesquelles I'institut sera appelé a réfléchir. Le monde doit
souffrir la concurrence entre deux blocs idéologiques incompa-
tibles et cette concurrence est responsable de beaucoup des
failles du systéme international.

Les organismes et institutions qui ont vu le jour au cours des
40 derniéres années ne sont que le reflet de leurs membres. Le
systéme qui régit le monde actuellement est probablement le
systéme que le monde mérite. Il n’y a, ni dans les faits ni en
puissance, aucun gouvernement mondial doté d’une autorité
supréme qui puisse forcer les Etats 4 se comporter d'une
certaine fagon.

Il n'y a pas d’urgence pour ce qui est de solutionner les
problémes internationaux. Ces problémes sont beaucoup trop
vastes et beaucoup trop complexes pour étre réglés par le
systéme international actuel ou par des institutions comme les
Nations Unies.

Le Canada, en collaboration avec les autres Etats, peut
contribuer au réglement des problémes internationaux, surtout
ceux qui ne peuvent pas étre attaqués de fagon efficace a
’échelon national. L’Institut canadien pour la paix et la
sécurité mondiales pourra s’y pencher.

Nous espérons donc que [I'institut accordera beaucoup
d’importance au mot «international» dans son titre. En ce qui
vous concerne, vous serez appelés a entendre beaucoup de
témoins, dont certains auront leur propre programme.

Permettez-nous de vous suggérer un domaine sur lequel
I'institut pourrait étre appelé a agir. Nous comptons bien que
I’Organisation des Nations Unies et le processus de coopéra-
tion internationale figureront parmi les grands sujets qui
retiendront ’attention de I'institut.

Les Nations Unies sont 4 un stade crucial de leur histoire au
cours de cette période trés difficile a ’échelon international.
L’institut peut contribuer de fagon importante a abattre les
nombreux mythes qui entourent le rdle et I'activité réels des
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and turn the cynicism of governments and the public into
constructive support.

While it may be argued that narrower arms control and
disarmament issues such as those dealing with the strategic
nuclear forces of the United States and the U.S.S.R. are best
discussed in other bilateral fora, nevertheless the United
Nations has continued to play a valuable role in the creation of
the environment necessary for conflict resolution and even for
nuclear arms control and disarmament.

The United Nations has contributed to collective security
through the Security Council system. The record of the United
Nations in bringing about peaceful settlements of disputes has
not been as weak as is often claimed. The United Nations has
contributed to the prevention of threats to the peace through
conflict-avoidance measures.

Through concerted efforts by the United Nations and its
member states, limited but important first steps in the forms of
international arms-control agreements have been reached.
Prominent among these are the 1959 Antarctic Treaty, the
1963 Partial Test Ban Treaty, the 1966 Outer Space Treaty,
the 1967 Treaty of Tlatelolco, the 1968 Non-Proliferation
Treaty, the 1971 Sea-Bed Treaty, the 1972 Biological
Weapons Treaty, the 1977 Convention on Environmental
Modification Techniques and the 1980 Convention on the Use
of Certain Conventional Weapons.

The institute can undertake research into the feasibility of
other multilateral arms-control treaties. Many of you par-
ticipated in the two important special sessions of the General
Assembly on disarmament. The first, which was held from
May 23 to July 1, 1978, was the largest, most representative
meeting of nations ever convened to consider the question of
disarmament. The final document, which was adopted by
consensus, was a call to action to reverse the present dangerous
situation and to begin a new phase in disarmament efforts.

This program of action proposed a wide range of measures
to enhance the security of all nations at progressively lower
levels of armaments and stressed the central role and primary
responsibility of the United Nations in the disarmament field
in accordance with the charter.

From June 7 to July 10, 1982, the second special session on
disarmament was held at the United Nations in New York. At
that meeting, over 3,000 representatives from 450 non-
governmental organizations in 47 countries around the
world—including of course, Canada—participated in the
session. Over 60 proposals and position papers by governments
were circulated, dealing with such questions as nuclear
disarmament and the prevention of nuclear war, the banning
of nuclear weapons, the verification of disarmament agree-
ments and the relationship between disarmament and develop-
ment. The special session launched the World Disarmament
Campaign with the purpose of informing, educating and
generating public understanding and support of the objectives

[Traduction]

Nations Unies et transformer le cynisme des gouvernements et
du public en un appui constructif.

Il y a un argument en faveur de cadres bilatéraux pour que
la discussion des questions de contréle des armements et du
désarmement, plus limitées dans leur portée, comme le niveau
des forces nucléaires stratégiques des Etats-Unis et de 'URSS,
mais les Nations Unies ont contribué et peuvent continuer de
contribuer a la création de I’environnement nécessaire pour la
résolution des conflits et méme le contrdle des armes nucléaires
et le désarmement.

Les Nations Unies ont contribué a la sécurité collective
grice au Conseil de sécurité. L’expérience des Nations Unies
relativement au réglement pacifique des conflits n’est pas aussi
mauvaise qu’on le dit souvent. Les Nations Unies ont souvent
contribué 4 prévenir des menaces a la paix grace a des mesures
de prévention.

_ Grice aux efforts concertés des Nations Unies et de ses
Etats membres, des étapes limitées, mais importantes, ont été
atteintes sous la forme d’ententes internationales sur le
controle des armements. Parmi les plus connues, il y a le Traité
de 1959 sur I’Antarctique, le Traité de 1963 sur 'interdiction
partielle des essais, le Traité de 1966 sur ’espace, le Traité de
Tlatelolco de 1967, le Traité de 1968 sur la non-prolifération,
le Traité de 1971 sur le lit de la mer, le Traité de 1972 sur les
armes biologiques, la Convention de 1977 sur les techniques de
modification de I’environnement, et la Convention de 1980 sur
'usage de certaines armes classiques.

L’institut pourrait faire de la recherche sur I'opportunité
d’autres traités multilatéraux sur le contrdle des armements.
Beaucoup d’entre vous ont participé aux deux importantes
sessions extraordinaires de I’Assemblée générale sur le
désarmement. La premiére, qui a été tenue du 23 mai au 1
juillet 1978, a été la réunion de nations la plus importante et la
plus représentative jamais tenue sur le sujet du désarmement.
Le document final, qui a été adopté par consensus, demandait
des mesures en vue de renverser la situation dangereuse
actuelle, ainsi que le début d’une nouvelle phase d’efforts de
désarmement.

Ce programme d’action prévoyait un large éventail de
mesures destinées a accroitre la sécurité de toutes les nations a
des niveaux d’armement progressivement moindre et insistait
sur le role central et la responsabilité premiére des Nations
Unies en matiére de désarmement, conformément a sa charte.

La deuxiéme session extraordinaire des Nations Unies sur le
désarmement s’est tenue & New York, du 7 juin au 10 juillet
1982. Lors de cette réunion, plus de 3,000 représentants de 450
organisations non gouvernementales provenant de 47 pays, y
compris, bien entendu, le Canada, participérent aux assises.
On fit circuler plus de 60 propositions et énoncés de divers
gouvernements portant sur des questions comme le désarme-
ment nucléaire et la prévention de la guerre nucléaire,
I’élimination des armes nucléaires, la vérification des ententes
relatives au désarmement et les rapports entre le désarmement
et le développement. La session extraordinaire fit démarrer la
Campagne mondiale de désarmement visant a renseigner et a
éduquer le public et 4 I'aider & comprendre et & appuyer les
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of the United Nations and the field of arms limitation and
disarmament.

SN55S

I am pleased to report to you that, along with Professor
Henry Wiseman of the University of Guelph—whom 1
understand you will be hearing tomorrow—at the invitation of
the United Nations I shall be attending a regional seminar on
the World Disarmament Campaign to be held in Leningrad,
U.S.S.R., in the second week of June.

Mr. Chairman, my purpose in outlining, very briefly, some
of the activities of the United Nations related to arms control
and disarmament is not to create the impression that the
United Nations has solved all the problems in this field.
Nevertheless, the maintenance of international peace and
security has been, and remains, the principal objective of the
United Nations system, and it is, therefore, our hope that the
institute will channel some of its resources into looking at the
United Nations system.

For our part, the United Nations Association in Canada will
continue to be active in the field of peace and security. In
October of this year we are publishing six concise, balanced,
background briefing papers on disarmament issues, in addition
to the four we normally publish on U.N. related issues. The six
briefing papers on chemical weapons, biological weapons,
horizontal proliferation, arms control fora, peacekeeping and
the conventional arms race in the Third World will be sent,
free of charge, in English and French, to every high school,
community college and university library in the country.

This program follows on the heels of of our 1983-1984 series
of symposia on international security and outer space.
Conceived long before President Reagan’s now famous “Star
Wars” speech, the program succeeded in placing on the
agenda of the Canadian public an emerging and important
arms control issue. In his message to the final conference of
the series, the Prime Minister said:

your conference on this crucial question should bring about
balance in the effort to understand the problems with which
you are now concerned.

We will also continue to distribute thousands of books,
papers and fact sheets on disarmament issues to schools,
universities, resource centres, libraries, businesses and
individuals right across Canada.

Mr. Chairman, the United Nations Association in Canada
looks forward to working closely with the institute. We are
certain we will complement each other’s work, rather than
compete for human or financial resources.

[Translation]

objectifs des Nations Unies, ainsi que la limitation des armes
et le désarmement.

Je suis heureux de vous annoncer qu’avec le professeur
Henry Wiseman, de 'Université de Guelph, qui doit témoigner
devant vous demain, j’ai été invité par les Nations Unies a
assister 4 un séminaire régional portant sur la Campagne
mondiale de désarmement, qui aura lieu 4 Leningrad, en
URSS, la deuxiéme semaine de juin.

Monsieur le président, en vous résumant quelques-unes des
activités des Nations Unies ayant trait au contrdle des armes
et au désarmement, je ne cherchais pas a vous donner I'impres-
sion que cet organisme a résolu tous les problémes existant
dans ce domaine. Cependant, le principal objectif des Nations
Unies continue a étre le maintien de la paix et de la sécurité
sur le plan international, et en raison de cela, nous espérons
que linstitut consacrera certaines de ses ressources a I'étude
du fonctionnement des Nations Unies.

Quant a I’Association canadienne pour les Nations Unies,
elle continuera a oeuvrer dans le domaine de la paix et de la
sécurité. En octobre prochain, nous allons publier six docu-
ments concis et pondérés sur certaines questions relatives au
désarmement, en plus des quatre que nous publions d’habitude
sur des sujets liés aux Nations Unies. Ces six documents, qui
portent sur les armes chimiques, les armes biologiques, la
prolifération horizontale, les tribunes ou l'on discute du
contrdle des armes, les activités du maintien de la paix et la
course aux armements classiques dans le Tiers monde, seront
envoyés, franco de port, en anglais et en frangais, a toutes les
bibliothéques des écoles secondaires, des colléges communau-
taires et des universités de notre pays.

Ce programme fait suite 4 la série de symposiums que nous
avons tenus en 1983-1984 au sujet de la sécurité internationale
et de I’espace. Congu bien avant que le président Reagan n’ait
prononcé son discours maintenant célébre sur la «guerre des
étoiles», ce programme réussit a saisir le public canadien de la
question de plus en plus importante que constitue le contréle
des armes. Dans le message que nous adressa le premier
ministre lors de la derniére conférence de cette série, ce dernier
nous dit, et je cite:

La conférence que vous avez fait porter sur cette question

d’une importance cruciale devrait rééquilibrer notre optique

des problémes qui vous préoccupent.

Nous allons également continuer a distribuer des milliers de
livres, de documents et de feuillets de renseignements sur les
questions relatives au désarmement, aux écoles, aux universi-
tés, aux centres de documentation, aux bibliothéques, aux
entreprises et aux particuliers, et ce, partout au Canada.

Monsieur le président, I’Association canadienne pour les
Nations Unies envisage avec plaisir de travailler en collabora-
tion étroite avec linstitut. Nous sommes certains que nos
activités respectives se compléteront, et que chacun n’essaiera
pas de damer le pion 4 I'autre pour ce qui est d’obtenir des
ressources humaines ou financiéres.
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From our perspective, the institute can play a number of
useful roles. It can provide a forum for discussion within
Canada on issues related to international peace and security; it
can provide a forum for consultation and compromise between
the various divergent views within and outside of Canada that
impede true progress on these problems; it can provide a
platform for national Canadian expression on the most
important issues facing humanity today; it can be a bank of
vital services, a source of non-advocacy information and
expertise, an educator and publicizer about the future of
mankind. The institute will add to the highest traditions of
Canadian peacekeeping.

Thank you again for this opportunity to provide this
testimony today. We shall be pleased to answer your questions.

The Chairman: Thank you very much, Mr. Kharas.

With the consent of the members of the committee, I think
this first stage of this afternoon’s session with the United
Nations Association representative should end at, say, 4.35
p.m., in order to give equal time to the second group of
witnesses from the Centre québécois de relations interna-
tionales.

Mr. Kilgour: A small point of order, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: Yes, Mr. Kilgour.

Mr. Kilgour: We have a vote, I understand, at 4.45 p.m. The
vote will be at 5.00 p.m. Could we agree that we all leave here
at about 4.53 p.m.?

The Chairman: That is right, there is a vote at 5 p.m. We
will have to shorten this session to 4.15 p.m., then we will meet
with the other group.

Mr. Sigler, do you wish to make a statement?
Mr. Sigler: No, that is fine.
The Chairman: All right, questions. Mr. Kilgour.

® 1600

Mr. Kilgour: Thank you, Mr. Chairman; and thank you,
Mr. Kharas and Dr. Sigler, for your excellent and most
relevant report.

This is not to turn into a series of compliments to the United
Nations Association, and if I may be permitted to say, my wife
taught for seven years at the United Nations High School in
Banff, and like the vast majority of Canadians, I have nothing
but goodwill and wish you success. People expect you to be
perfect in a very imperfect world, and I am sure that is one of
the problems you have.

May I, sir, ask you a couple of things; whoever might like to
reply. Have you had a chance to go through the Bill, clause by
clause, and could you suggest any improvements you would

[Traduction]

A notre avis, I'institut peut étre utile & plusieurs titres. Ainsi,
par exemple, il peut constituer une tribune canadienne ou I'on
discutera de questions relatives a la paix et a la sécurité sur le
plan international; il pourra constituer un lieu de consultation
et de compromis entre les tenants d’idées divergentes, a la fois
au Canada et a lextérieur de notre pays, dont les idées
opposées empéchent qu’on ne réalise de véritables progres; il
pourra donner une expression nationale aux Canadiens au
sujet des questions les plus importantes dont ’humanité est
aujourd’hui saisie; il pourra constituer une banque de services
fondamentaux, une source de renseignements et de connaissan-
ces neutres, et éduquer et renseigner le public sur 'avenir de
’humanité. L’institut constituera un autre fleuron de 'une des
traditions les plus honorables du Canada, soit le maintien de la
paix.

Je vous remercie encore de m’avoir donné I’occasion de
témoigner devant vous aujourd’hui. C’est avec plaisir que nous
répondrons aux questions que vous voudrez bien nous poser.

Le président: Merci beaucoup, monsieur Kharas.

Si les membres du Comité y consentent, je crois que nous
devrions mettre fin 4 cette premiére partie de notre réunion, ou
témoigne le représentant de 1’Association canadienne pour les
Nations Unies, vers 16h35, afin d’accorder le méme temps au
second groupe de témoins, c’est-a-dire aux représentants du
Centre québécois de relations internationales.

M. Kilgour: Monsieur le président, j'aimerais invoquer le
Réglement.

Le président: Oui, monsieur Kilgour.

M. Kilgour: Je crois savoir que nous serons convoqués a
voter 4 16h45 et que le vote se tiendra a 17 heures. Pouvons-
nous donc convenir de lever la séance vers 16h53?

Le président: Vous avez raison, il y a un vote a 17 heures.
Nous devrons donc abréger cette premiére partie de notre
séance afin qu’elle se termine & 16hlS5, aprés quoi nous
entendrons ’autre groupe.

Monsieur Sigler, avez-vous une déclaration a faire?
M. Sigler: Non, monsieur le président.

Le président: C’est bien; passons maintenant aux questions.

M. Kilgour: Merci, monsieur le président, et merci a vous
aussi, messieurs Kharas et Sigler, de nous avoir présenté un
rapport aussi excellent et pertinent.

Je ne cherche pas la a flatter I’Association canadienne pour
les Nations Unies, et j'aimerais rappeler que ma femme
enseigna pendant sept ans a la United Nations High School
(Ecole secondaire des Nations Unies) de Banff, et comme la
trés grande majorité des Canadiens, je suis trés bien disposé a
votre endroit et vous souhaite tout le succés possible. Dans un
monde imparfait, on s’attend a ce que vous soyez parfait, et je
suis slir que cela est une de vos difficultés.

J’aimerais maintenant poser quelques questions a I'un ou
I'autre d’entre vous. D’abord, avez-vous pu étudier le projet de
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like to see in the Bill when it is eventually passed in the
House?

Mr. Kharas: Yes, sir, I have gone through the Bill, clause by
clause; and no, I do not have any particular amendments to
suggest. I would rather confine my remarks to the substance of
the Bill and the concept of establishing the institute itself.

Mr. Kilgour: All right. As you I am sure know, as other
members do, it is very much the belief of my leader and my
party that by asking respective organizations, such as your-
selves, to propose names for the 16 directors of the organiza-
tion that we would produce a non-partisan, highly competent,
apolitical institute. Have you been consulted to date about a
name? You do not have to reveal the name you wish to
propose, but are you ready to submit a name as a director of
the association, sponsored by the United Nations Association?

Mr. Kharas: Yes, sir. I received a telegram from Mr.
MacEachen, on Friday, inviting the association to submit
names. After some consultation with the executive of the
association, I replied by telegram on Friday afternoon to Mr.
MacEachen. We have suggested four names: Dr. George
Ignatieff, a past president of the assocation, Chancellor of the
University of Toronto, former Ambassador to the United
Nations, and so on; Mr. William Barton, also a member of the
Board of Directors, and also someone you will be hearing here;
Mrs. Joanna Miller who is a grass-roots activist in Saskatoon;
and Dr. John Sigler.

Mr. Kilgour: Thank you very much for that. That is most
helpful.

Would the institute affect your financing or the work you
are already doing by, in a sense, draining off funds or talent or
people that might otherwise be available to help you in the
area of disarmament?

Mr. Kharas: I do not believe it will. I see our work as being
complementary. As I said in the statement, I do not believe we
will be competing for either financial or human resources. We
get some support from the Disarmament Fund of the Depart-
ment of External Affairs. It is my understanding that fund will
continue to exist and we will be able to submit proposals as we
have already done.

It is our hope that the institute will be contracting out some
of the work it may wish to undertake, and that the association,
if it is relevant, may be considered, along with other non-
governmental organizations, for any work it may be contract-
ing out. But as far as competing for already existing financial
or human resources, I am reasonably confident that is not
going to happen.

Mr. Kilgour: Thank you very much.
The Chairman: Thank you.

[Translation)

loi article par article, et aimeriez-vous y proposer des amélio-
rations avant qu’on ne I’adopte a la Chambre?

M. Kharas: Oui, monsieur Kilgour, j’ai étudié le projet de
loi article par article, et non, je n'ai pas de modifications
précises a proposer. Je préférerais limiter mes observations au
contenu de ce bill, ainsi qu’a I'idée visant a établir I'institut.

M. Kilgour: Bien. Vous et moi et les autres membres
n’ignorons pas que le chef de mon parti et mon parti aime-
raient que des organisations comme la vitre proposent les
noms de candidats aux 16 postes du conseil d’administration
de Iorganisation, de telle sorte que nous créions un institut non
partisan, trés compétent et apolitique. Vous a-t-on consultés a
cet égard jusqu’'a maintenant? Vous n’étes pas obligés de
révéler le nom que vous aimeriez proposer, mais étes-vous
disposés a le faire, c’est-a-dire a proposer la candidature d’une
personne donnée au conseil d’administration de cette associa-
tion qui est parrainée par I’Association canadienne pour les
Nations Unies?

M. Kharas: Oui, monsieur Kilgour. M. MacEachen nous a
fait parvenir un télégramme, vendredi, dans lequel il a invité
I’association a lui fournir des noms. Aprés avoir consulté les
membres de notre exécutif, j’ai donc répondu I’aprés-midi
méme & M. MacEachen. Nous lui avons proposé quatre noms:
celui de M. George Ignatieff, ancien président de I’association,
chancelier de I'Université de Toronto et ancien ambassadeur
aux Nations Unies, etc.; celui de M. William Barton, égale-
ment membre du conseil d’administration, qui témoignera
devant vous ici; M™ Joanna Miller, militante de la base a
Saskatoon, et M. John Sigler.

M. Kilgour: Je vous remercie vivement de m’avoir communi-
qué ces noms, cela me sera fort utile.

La création de l'institut aura-t-elle des répercussions sur le
financement ou sur le travail de votre organisme, c’est-a-dire
détournera-t-il vers lui les fonds ou les personnes qui auraient
pu autrement étre disponibles pour vous dans le domaine du
désarmement?

M. Kharas: Je ne le crois pas. Le travail de nos deux
organismes me parait étre complémentaire. Ainsi que le
précisait mon texte, je ne crois pas que nous essaierons de nous
damer le pion I'un et l'autre pour obtenir des ressources
financiéres ou humaines. Nous recevons de l'aide du fonds de
désarmement du ministére des Affaires extérieures. A ma
connaissance, ce fonds continuera a exister, et nous serons tout
autant en mesure de présenter des propositions que mainte-
nant.

Nous espérons que l'institut fera effectuer certains de ses
travaux par voie de contrats, et que ’on songera a I’association
tout autant qu’a d’autres organisations non gouvernementales,
si cela est pertinent, lorsqu’il s’agira d’accorder certains
contrats. Toutefois, pour ce qui est de se faire concurrence I'un
et 'autre pour obtenir des ressources financiéres ou humaines,
je suis assez sir que cela ne se produira pas.

M. Kilgour: Merci beaucoup.

Le président: Merci.
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Mr. McRae, I will give you only five or six minutes because
of the time constraint.

Mr. McRae: This question is to both of the witnesses; all the
questions are. I would assume if this is going to be a research
institute, or at least to a certain degree, that one of the major
sources of information will be the U.N. And I take it there are
fairly extensive research facilities that would be made
available to us under these circumstances.

Now, the second question is, I think, the key thing to the
whole business. I do not want to delineate between indepen-
dence in a political sense, but independence in the sense that
the organization functions not as an arm of the existing
Department of National Defence or Department of External
Affairs. I am, myself, quite concerned about the latter; that in
the structure and the nature of the people who are functioning
in it it does not become an arm or an extension of either of
those departments or both of those departments.

® 1605

In the first place, I would ask you whether you agree with
that particular situation—if that is desirable—and I would ask
you your suggestions on how that might come about, if you do
agree; or if you do not agree, for any comments you have. I
particularly am interested in the second question, because you
have already nodded at the first one, and if time is a little
short, I would like you to dwell on the second question.

Mr. Kharas: Perhaps I will answer the first question and Dr.
Sigler will answer the second.

Regarding the sources of information about the United
Nations, of course the institute will receive all the material the
association generates itself, plus any other information about
the UN that we can make available to the institute, we will be
pleased to do so. We also, of course, have the facility to order
from the United Nations documents that the institute may be
willing to purchase. In fact, I certainly hope the institute does
channel its requirements for documentation through the
association. We would hope that much of the research does
centre around the United Nations, in part using the United
Nations material and in part creating material that may then
in turn be used by and at the United Nations.

Dr. Sigler: If I may respond to the second part, Mr. McRae,
I was quite concerned when I originally saw this, in terms of
the make-up of the board of governors, as to how that problem
of outreach would be handled. It seems to me—and it is
presently constituted and indicated by these consultations—
that if that is broadly representative of the range of activities
that would be necessary, one that is critical is those associa-
tions in Canada which are membership organizations based on
branches across the country who have a record of experience in
disseminating information in kinds of ways one would not
expect the regular bureaucracy in Ottawa to touch, such as the
high schools of this country, which have been very important

[Traduction]

Monsieur McRae, je vais vous accorder seulement cinq ou
six minutes, étant donné les contraintes auxquelles nous
sommes assujettis.

M. McRae: Ma question, comme toutes les autres, s’adresse
a nos deux témoins. Si I'institut constitue un organisme de
recherche, tout au moins jusqu’a un certain point, alors, 'une
de ses principales sources de renseignements sera les Nations
Unies. Je suppose donc qu'il aura accés a des services de
recherche assez importants.

En second lieu, j’aimerais aborder un élément fondamental
de toute votre entreprise. Ce n’est pas de I'indépendance
politique que j’aimerais parler, mais plut6t de I'indépendance
dans le sens ou l'organisation ne serait pas I’émanation du
ministére actuel de la Défense nationale, ni de celui des
Affaires extérieures. Pour ma part, la seconde situation me
préoccuperait beaucoup. Je crois donc que et la structure et le
fonctionnement de votre organisme et le personnel qui y
travaillera ne doivent pas devenir le prolongement de I'un ou
I’autre de ces ministéres, ni des deux.

D’abord, étes-vous d’accord avec une telle situation, est-elle
souhaitable, et si tel est le cas, comment pourrait-elle se
produire? Si vous n’étes pas d’accord, qu’avez-vous a dire? La
seconde question m’intéresse particulierement, parce que vous
avez déja, par un signe de téte, répondu affirmativement a la
premiére. Etant donné que le temps qui nous est imparti est
limité, j’aimerais donc que vous répondiez a la seconde.

M. Kharas: Je vais répondre a la premiére question, puis M.
Sigler répondra a la seconde.

Pour ce qui est des sources de renseignements sur les
Nations Unies, bien entendu, linstitut recevra tous les
documents que l'association produit, ainsi que tout autre
renseignement relatif aux Nations Unies, que nous serons en
mesure de fournir 4 I'institut, ce que nous ferons volontiers. En
outre, nous pouvons bien siir commander des documents aux
Nations Unies, et l'institut voudra peut-étre les acheter. De
fait, j'espére que l'institut passera par notre entremise pour
obtenir ces documents. Nous espérons également qu’une bonne
part de la recherche qu’il effectuera portera sur les Nations
Unies et qu’il utilisera les documents de cet organisme, tout en
créant également ses propres ressources documentaires, qui
pourront ensuite étre utilisées aux Nations Unies et par
’organisme.

M. Sigler: Pour répondre 4 la seconde question, monsieur
McRae, j’ai d’abord été assez préoccupé lorsque j'ai vu qui
faisait partie du conseil d’administration, car je me suis
demandé comment on pourrait rejoindre les régions éloignées.
Aprés avoir examiné la constitution et effectué des consulta-
tions, il me semble qu’on doit représenter toute la gamme des
activités nécessaires. Or, au Canada, au sein des associations
dont les membres sont disséminés parmi des bureaux régio-
naux, ces bureaux ont beaucoup d’expérience en diffusion de
renseignements, 4 tel point qu'on ne peut s’attendre a ce que
les services administratifs d’Ottawa puissent faire de méme.
Ces derniers ne pourront pas, par exemple, atteindre les écoles
secondaires; or, elles ont joué un réle important par rapport a
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for the United Nations Association, with an established
distribution network of this kind of material.

It is also true in a whole host of branches across the country,
with a long history, that you have a membership that is not
based on research organizations per se. That kind of network
of people is quite important if you take seriously the function
of encouraging public discussion of international peace and
security issues. There is always a problem in this country of
mounting anything from Ottawa and expecting it necessarily
to have that kind of outreach across the country. By the very
insistence on this process of consultation with existing
Canadian organizations that have those kinds of bases across
the country, I think this is the way you will ensure by that
board some kind of participation that escapes the notion that it
simply is another Ottawa-based government institution.

Mr. McRae: [ would wonder if you looked at the financ-
ing—whether you think this is conducive to independence. I
really do not think political independence is nearly as impor-
tant as the freedom to function separately from the long arm
of the government.

Dr. Sigler: I will answer your question in a relative way
rather than an absolute.

Mr. McRae: Yes.

Dr. Sigler: The relative way is, this is so much better than
what we have at present that we are moving in the right
direction. Whether or not it accomplishes all of the ideal
considerations you would want, I am not sure. But in fact this
represents a group staffed in part by experts with government
experience, but also staffed by others; which is better than
where we are now. In that sense we see it as a net positive step
outward to get this debate opened up and not so exclusively
from within the ministries.

I happen to think we have a lot of talent in those ministries.
But one of the difficulties of all bureaucracy is that you have
to reorganize periodically and move things out to get the best
out of trained people in this field. I see this as a move in the
right direction.

Mr. McRae: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, for this round.

The Chairman: Mr. Watson.

Mr. Watson: There was one comment the first witness
made, and I just would wonder if I could perhaps get a further
comment on it. Talking about the two systems, the Communist
system and the free-enterprise system, represented in the two
super-powers and thereby being ideologically incompatible, I
am enough of an optimist that I do not think that is necessarily
the case. Are you really convinced that the two are totally

[Translation]

I’Association canadienne pour les Nations Unies, étant donné
qu’elles disposent d’un réseau de distribution des documents de
’association.

Cette remarque vaut également pour toute une brochette de
bureaux régionaux existant depuis longtemps, et auxquels on
n’adhére pas nécessairement parce qu’il s’agit d’un organisme
de recherche. Il faut cependant tenir compte de ce réseau de
membres si I'on prend au sérieux la responsabilité d’encoura-
ger une discussion publique des questions relatives 4 la paix et
a la sécurité sur le plan international. On a toujours de la
difficulté, dans notre pays, lorsqu’il s’agit de rayonner depuis
Ottawa, et qu'on s’attend a4 ce que le projet atteigne tout le
monde partout au pays. Toutefois, si I’on insiste pour consulter
des organisations canadiennes existant déja et ayant des
bureaux régionaux, cela créera une forme de participation, qui,
a son tour, permettra au public de considérer le conseil et
I'organisation comme autre chose qu’un autre organisme
gouvernemental constitué de gens d’Ottawa.

M. McRae: Croyez-vous que la forme de financement
envisagé puisse assurer I'indépendance de I'organisme? A mon
avis, I'indépendance politique est loin d’étre aussi importante
que la possibilité de fonctionner de fagon distincte du gouver-
nement.

M. Sigler: Je vous répondrai de fagon nuancée plutdt que
tranchée.

M. McRae: Allez-y.

M. Sigler: Jentends par ld que la solution envisagée est
tellement supérieure 4 ce qui existe a I’heure actuelle que jai
I'impression que nous sommes sur la bonne voie. Pour ce qui
est de savoir cependant si I'on atteindra tous les objectifs
idéaux que nous nous proposerons, je n’en suis pas sir. Cela
dit, le groupe sera doté en partie de spécialistes ayant acquis de
I’expérience au sein du gouvernement, mais également en
partie de personnes provenant d’ailleurs, ce qui est préférable a
la situation actuelle. En ce sens, le geste posé ainsi nous parait
constituer une premiére étape visant a I’élargissement du
débat, par opposition a4 la mainmise exclusive sur lui qu’ont
tendance a avoir les ministéres.

A mon avis, ces ministéres regorgent cependant de personnes
trés compétentes, mais l'une des difficultés inhérentes au
fonctionnement bureaucratique, c’est qu’il faut périodique-
ment réorganiser les structures et changer certaines choses afin
que les spécialistes dans certains domaines puissent donner le
meilleur d’eux-mémes. Or, cette initiative parait justement
favoriser cela.

M. McRae: Merci, monsieur le président, c’est tout pour le
premier tour.

Le président: Monsieur Watson.

M. Watson: J'aimerais me reporter 4 une observation faite
par le premier témoin, et lui demander s’il peut la développer
davantage. Au sujet des deux systémes qui s’affrontent, c’est-
a-dire le monde communiste et le monde de la libre entreprise,
qui sont représentés par les deux superpuissances, je suis assez
optimiste pour penser que ces deux derniers ne sont pas
nécessairement incompatibles sur le plan idéologique. Etes-
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incompatible over the long run? You are not a student of the
theory that eventually the two will merge in some form of
compatibility?
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Mr. Kharas: I take my cue from the last two reports of the
Secretary General. Both of them have been very pessimistic in
their outlook; both of them have painted a rather bleak picture
of the present international system as he sees it.

One of the criticisms that is often levelled at the United
Nations’ system is of course the fact that the U.S. and the
U.S.S.R., along with three other countries, hold the veto power
in the Security Council, and by virtue of holding that veto
power exercise an enormous degree of influence over the
political decision-making process in the UN.

I see that veto power being a symbol, if you will, of their
influence, spheres of influence, and ability to influence
political decision-making in the larger international system as
well.

As far as them being incompatible, that is not to say there
should not be co-operation. I am very very much in favour
obviously of international co-operation, especially between the
super-powers, but as far as them ever coming together, to use
your phrase, I am unfortunately personally rather sceptical
about that.

Mr. Watson: Thank you.

The Chairman: Thank you very much. On behalf of my
colleagues I wish to thank you. Mr. McRae, one question.

Mr. McRae: The question has to do with studies and the
kind of thing we should be looking at, particularly because we
could model the thing after Cyrpus. Or we could go in and
have the numbers, but also the direction might be some
studies, and particularly studies of the two super-powers. And
we might move in the direction of having a group becoming
fairly highly specialized, for instance, in terms of the rather
critical scene in the Gulf and this kind of thing. Also there is
the question of an international board. I just wondered if you
could deal with those points; I will leave it at that.

Dr. Sigler: The first one, of course, has been addressed
frequently, as to the specialization. I actually like the discus-
sion about reducing international tensions and I have also the
feeling as to an area where in fact Canada has an untapped
expertise: It is the whole business of negotiation.

This country is in fact based on a constant bit of internal
negotiation in order to maintain it. I had the experience of
being adviser to the Canadian delegation to the General
Assembly in 1981 and what struck me at that time was the
extraordinary competence of the mission that we continue to
send to the United Nations in the simple business of the day to
day basis of ongoing negotiations. I think a great deal could be
done in this notion of international tension reduction by simply

[Traduction)

vous vraiment convaincu que les deux systémes sont vraiment
incompatibles a long terme? Vous ne soucrivez pas 4 la théorie
d’aprés laquelle les deux finiront par en arriver a un modus
vivendi quelconque?

M. Kharas: Je me reporte ici aux deux derniers rapports du
secrétaire général, qui était trés pessimiste. En effet, les deux
peignaient un tableau plutdt sombre du systéme international
actuel.

L'une des critiques que l'on fait souvent au systéme des
Nations Unies est que les Etats-Unis et 'URSS, ainsi que trois
autres pays, y détiennent le droit de veto au Conseil de
sécurité, et qu’a cause de ce droit de veto, ces derniers exercent
une influence énorme sur la prise de décisions au sein de
I’ONU.

Ce droit de veto me parait étre le symbole de leur influence,
ou de leur sphére d’influence, et de la possibilité de peser sur la
prise de décisions ailleurs également, a I’échelle internationale.

Quant 4 I'incompatibilité entre les deux systémes, elle ne
devrait pas exclure la collaboration. Je suis certainement trés
favorable 4 une collaboration internationale, tout spécialement
entre les deux super-grands, mais pour ce qui est d’assister a
leur rapprochement, pour ma part, je suis malheureusement
plutdt sceptique a cet égard.

M. Watson: Merci.

Le président: Merci beaucoup. Au nom de mes collégues,
j'aimerais vous remercier. Monsieur McRae, vous pouvez
poser une question.

M. McRae: Elle porte sur les études et le genre de choses
que nous devrions envisager, particuliérement compte tenu du
fait que nous pouvons les calquer sur un modele, aprés ce qui
s’est passé 4 Chypre. Nous pourrions aussi peut-étre obtenir les
chiffres, mais également envisager certaines études, et surtout
des études des deux superpuissances. A cet égard, nous
pourrions constituer un groupe de spécialistes, dont le domaine
porterait, par exemple, sur la situation dans le Golfe persique,
et ce genre de choses. On peut également songer d une
commission internationale. Pouvez-vous faire quelques
remarques la-dessus? Ce sera tout.

M. Sigler: D’abord, au sujet de la spécialisation, c’est une
question sur laquelle on s’est penché fréquemment. Pour ma
part, j'aime les discussions qui portent sur la réduction des
tensions internationales, mais j’ai également I'impression que
le Canada dispose de connaissances dont il n’a jamais tiré parti
dans le domaine des négociations.

Notre pays se maintient en effet constamment grice a de
constantes négociations internes. Lorsque j’ai servi de conseil-
ler auprés de la délégation canadienne a I’Assemblée générale,
en 1981, j’ai été frappé par la compétence remarquable de nos
représentants aux Nations Unies, et ce, eu égard aux négocia-
tions constantes et quotidiennes auxquelles ils devaient
participer. Je pense donc qu’on pourrait certainement contri-
buer a4 réduire les tensions internationales, tout simplement en
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tapping an area where, in fact, we have nothing to be apolo-
getic about. There is a long record of very distinguished
Canadian diplomacy and there is a long record of experience
implicit in this country’s experience as to how it maintains
itself by that process of negotiation.

So I think that focus, and that is still a very broad agenda,
but still this expertise in negotiation is in fact something we
could make a very deliberate contribution to.

Mr. McRae: Thank you very much for that suggestion.

The Chairman: Thank you very much, Mr. McRae. Mr.
McLean for one question.

Mr. McLean: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I apologize for
being late. This question may have been addressed and if it
has, then maybe you could . . . so we do not abuse the commit-
tee’s time. But I wonder whether there was some discussion
about the relationship of the proposed institute to government
and models that might be looked at. For example, there are a
number of people who suggest that rather than being ultra-
concerned about the so-called independence of agencies such
as the United Nations’ Association and other groups concerned
with international affairs, it would be better served with two
models, such that an institute that we are now talking about be
much more closely identified with government. It should be, in
a sense, a research arm quite clearly identifiable as such in a
way such as the Science Council is, rather than the IDRC
model, which floats with a board and somehow is open to more
attack.
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Secondly, there ought to be some enhanced funding for
independent research that is totally independent, done within
the universities for example. So when you get reports each
year, one tabled in Parliament and independent reports tabled,
if you get the two of them bringing in the same analysis then
you have some direction of thinking. If you get, for example,
the government institute suggesting one direction and the
independent academic institutes disagreeing, you have the
basis for a public debate.

Now, in generally affirming the attitude of getting more
information on the table and more public education done, my
instinct is that those who espouse this sort of model and are
looking at what we have in the way of trying to provide a
service suggests that maybe we ought to be not so concerned
about the independents in that way but setting up models that
would be totally independent. The arms control division of
External Affairs now gives out money, as we all know, and
they say they do this on merit. But in reality they are not
answerable to Parliament. They can be, in the giving of those
grants, rather political. As we see from time to time, depend-
ing on who is putting the pressure on, some groups studying
this issue suddenly find their number removed or so on because
somebody has made that kind of a judgment.

[Translation)

profitant des ressources dont nous disposons dans un domaine,
et dont nous pouvons certainement étre fiers. La diplomatie
canadienne a accumulé de longs et trés distingués états de
service, et nous pouvons également tirer profit de notre longue
expérience en matiére de négociations internes, négociations
qui ont permis a notre pays de se maintenir.

Le projet demeure tout de méme trés vaste, mais, compte
tenu de cette connaissance des négociations que nous avons,
nous pouvons certainement contribuer a quelque chose

d’intéressant.
M. McRae: Merci beaucoup de cette proposition.

Le président: Merci beaucoup, monsieur McRae. Monsieur
McLean, vous pouvez poser une question.

M. McLean: Merci, monsieur le président. Je m’excuse
d’étre arrivé en retard. Il se peut qu'on ait déja posé ma
question, auquel cas je ne veux pas prendre le temps du
Comité. Cependant, j'aimerais savoir si on a discuté des
rapports entre I'institut et le gouvernement, et si on a discuté
des modeles qu’on songe a imiter. Ainsi, par exemple, certaines
personnes sont d’avis que plutdt que de se préoccuper outre
mesure d’obtenir I'indépendance d’organismes comme
I’Association canadienne pour les Nations Unies et d’autres
groupes intéressés par les questions internationales, il vaudrait
mieux pouvoir disposer de deux modé¢les, ce qui signifie que
Iinstitut envisagé devrait avoir des liens plus étroits avec le
gouvernement. A certains égards, il devrait s’agir d’un service
de recherche facile 4 identifier, un peu comme le Conseil des
sciences, et il ne devrait peut-étre pas se calquer sur le Centre
de recherches pour le développement international, qui est doté
d’un conseil et qui préte davantage flanc a des attaques.

En second lieu, on devrait accroitre I’aide financiére
accordée aux recherches effectuées de fagon tout a fait
indépendante, par exemple, la recherche effectuée au sein des
universités. Ainsi, lorsqu’on regoit des rapports chaque année,
car on en dépose au Parlement, puis I'on présente également
des rapports indépendants, si les deux catégories de rapports en
arrivent aux mémes conclusions, alors, cela aide a orienter les
choses. Ainsi, par exemple, si I'institut gouvernemental propose
qu’on s’engage dans une voie et si les instituts universitaires ne
sont pas d’accord, cela peut justifier un débat public.

En général, lorsqu’il s’agit de réclamer davantage de
renseignements et d’éducation a l'intention du public, & mon
avis, ceux qui préconisent I’adoption de ce modele et se
reportent a ce qui existe déja pour fournir leurs services me
rappellent qu’il faut peut-étre moins se préoccuper de la
question de I'indépendance et peut-étre un peu plus du choix
de modéles qui soient véritablement indépendants. A I'heure
actuelle, la division du controle des armements du ministére
des Affaires extérieures accorde de ’argent, comme nous ne
I'ignorons pas, et elle affirme le faire aprés avoir vérifié les
mérites de chaque dossier. En réalité, cependant, ce service n’a
pas 4 répondre de ses actes devant le Parlement. Il peut donc
se reporter a des normes tout a fait politiques lorsqu’il accorde
ces subventions. Ainsi que nous le voyons de temps d autre,
selon 'origine des pressions exercées, certains groupes étudiant
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I wonder first if you have addressed that, and second
whether you have any observations about that kind of funda-
mental structure.

Dr. Sigler: On the structural question, the model that I
found the most appealing in this was the Woodrow Wilson
Centre of the Smithsonian Institute in Washington, D.C,,
precisely because it was responsive to something we do not
have here; that is, that interface between government experts
and others. The government people are quite responsive if you
can get to them, but one of the problems here is they have their
own agenda and in-basket. That is very difficult if they are not
also with some kind of release time themselves.

So even though it has a governmental aspect, it also means
that you will have fellows, I assume, under one plan coming in
from the academic and other organizations, such as ourselves,
and working for six months or a year jointly with the govern-
ment expert who is relieved of his other responsibilities and can
in fact devote some time to using the kind of experience that
has been conveyed.

So I think that is the critical ingredient. We will take a
value judgment as to how well that works. Our own feeling is
that it is likely to work. It is a formula we do not have
elsewhere in Ottawa.

This allows me to come back to Mr. McRae’s question. The
one formula that has earned us an enormous number of points
internationally is exactly the IDRC formula for providing for
international representation. I frankly feel on this kind of
question that it is far more important that we have some
outreach, as well as input, to another group of people on this
question. Just getting our Canadian act in order will not be
sufficient. After all, we are not the problem in international
relations on this score—others are.

So I see both this Woodrow Wilson notion, which could
include an international fellow who happens to be an expert on
this as well, and I like our international board in almost
exactly the ratio that you have established, although it does
not provide that in fact we will have international members; it
simply permits it. But I think it is an enormously important
idea to have those international members.

Mr. Kilgour: A small supplementary?

The Chairman: Perhaps people realize we have a small
technical problem, which is that we are unable to produce the
interpretation in French. I wonder what kind of problem this is
going to represent to Mr. LeBlanc, our next witness—unless
you want to accept to do your presentation in English. If it is

[Traduction)

cette question découvrent tout & coup que leur numéro a été
radié, ou autre chose, et ce, parce que quelqu’un a porté un
jugement.

J’aimerais d’abord savoir si vous vous étes penché sur cette
question, et en second lieu, si vous avez des observations a faire
au sujet de ce genre de structure fondamentale.

M. Sigler: Pour ce qui est des structures, le modéle qui m’a
paru le plus attirant était 'organigramme du Centre Woodrow
Wilson, de I'Institut Smithsonian de Washington, précisément
parce qu’il représentait quelque chose qui n’existe pas ici, a
savoir une coordination entre les services des experts gouverne-
mentaux et les autres. Les employés de l’administration
publique font preuve d’un grand esprit de collaboration si vous
pouvez les atteindre, mais 'un de leurs problémes, c’est qu’ils
ont déja leur propre calendrier de travail et leurs propres
dossiers. Il est donc trés difficile de collaborer avec eux si on ne
leur donne pas le temps de le faire.

En conséquence, méme si l'organisme sera constitué en
partie d’effectifs gouvernementaux, il en accueillera également
des milieux universitaires et d’autres organisations, comme la
notre, des spécialistes qui travailleront pendant six mois ou une
année, en collaboration avec un spécialiste gouvernemental,
qu’on aura relevé de ses autres fonctions, et qui pourra donc
consacrer une période donnée aux fonctions de I'organisme, et
le faire bénéficier de son expérience.

Cela me parait donc étre I'ingrédient indispensable. Nous
porterons ensuite un jugement sur le fonctionnement de
Iinstitut. D’aprés nous, il fonctionnera probablement. Il s’agit
de toute fagon d’une formule inédite & Ottawa.

Je reviens maintenant 4 la question de M. McRae. La
formule qui nous a obtenu une bonne reconnaissance interna-
tionale est précisément celle qu’utilise le Centre de recherches
pour le développement international pour ce qui est d’obtenir
une représentation internationale. A cet égard, je suis franche-
ment d’avis qu'il est bien plus important que nous puissions
rejoindre d’autres groupes sur cette question, et que nous ne
nous contentions pas d’accueillir des avis de I'extérieur. De
toute facon, il ne suffira pas de mettre de I'ordre dans notre
maison, au Canada, car, aprés tout, ce n’est pas nous qui
sommes 4 la source des problémes de relations internationales,
ce sont d’autres pays.

En conséquence, le fonctionnement du Centre Woodrow
Wilson, qui accueille un spécialiste en la matiére d’un pays
étranger, et notre idée & nous d’un conseil international me
paraissent intéressantes, et ce, dans les proportions a peu prés
identiques a celles que vous avez établies, méme si votre projet
ne précise pas qu’il faudra s’adjoindre une personne d’un pays
étranger, il ne fait que le permettre. Il me parait cependant
extrémement important de faire participer ces membres
internationaux.

M. Kilgour: Une bréve question supplémentaire?

Le président: On s’est peut-étre rendu compte que nous
avons des difficultés techniques, c’est-d-dire que nous sommes
incapables de saisir l'interprétation en frangais. J'aimerais
donc savoir si cela représentera un probléme pour M. LeBlanc,
qui est notre prochain témoin, & moins que ce dernier n’accepte
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done in French it is not going to be translated or interpreted.
In spite of all the efforts . . .

Mr. Watson: Where is the English translation for it?

The Chairman: We will see. In any case, I think we might as
well use up the few more minutes while they are trying to cope
with this problem.

Mr. Kilgour, Madam Beauchamp-Niquet, and Mr. Watson,
one short question each please.

Mr. Kilgour: You have heard the IDRC; you know that the
board, I think, is half non-Canadian, half Canadian. One of
the things that personally troubles me, and you have already
alluded to this, should we not be able to find 16 emminently
qualified Canadians, such as yourself, to be directors of this
institute without having to go outside of Canada? And I note
that the four people you have suggested were all Canadians.
As a Canadian I feel that we have sufficient experience,
expertise and wisdom that we should be able to come up with
16 directors from within Canada. Where do you stand on that?

® 1620

Dr. Sigler: There is no problem, of course, finding the 16; I
agree with you on that. It is simply the formula of where you
want to go with this idea, in terms of the commitment of others
who would come. I actually see Ottawa providing a kind of
base here for a very important international centre for
consultations. And the mere fact that you are also acknowl-
edged that you are part of an international community on this
question. I do not know what the numbers would be, but I
think the principle probably is more important even than the
principle that you put forward, which I fully share.

But I think there is something here that we have started, in
terms of a movement, that I would like to see emulated by
others as well, because it is in fact enriching that transnational
network that is going to get us out of some of these problems
of confrontation simply in interstate relations.

Mr. Kilgour: Thank you.
The Chairman: Madam Beauchamp-Niquet.

Mme Beauchamp-Niquet: Monsieur le président, c’était un
recours au Réglement se rapportant a notre prochain témoin.

.

Le président: Merci bien. En quoi avait-il trait 4 notre
témoin? Vouliez-vous savoir si M. LeBlanc accepterait de
témoigner en anglais?

Mme Beauchamp-Niquet: Non, nous avons accepté que
I'autre témoin s’exprime dans sa langue et je pense que I'on
devrait également permettre & M. LeBlanc de s’exprimer dans
la langue de son choix. C’était ma proposition, monsieur le
président.

Le président: Je n’y vois aucun inconvénient. Trés bien.
Monsieur Watson.
The Chairman: Okay. Mr. Watson.

[Translation)

de faire son exposé en anglais. S’il le fait en francais, il ne sera
pas interprété. En dépit de tous les efforts . . .

M. Watson: Ou en est la traduction anglaise?

Le président: Nous allons voir. De toute fagon, aussi bien
profiter des quelques autres minutes nécessaires pour régler le
probléme pour poser des questions.

M. Kilgour, M™ Beauchamp-Niquet, puis M. Watson, vous
avez chacun une bréve question.

M. Kilgour: Vous connaissez le Centre de recherches pour le
développement international, et vous savez que son conseil est
constitué a 50 p. 100 de non-Canadiens. L’une des choses qui
me préoccupent personnellement, et vous en avez déja parlé,
C’est ceci: et si nous ne pouvions pas trouver 16 Canadiens
hautement qualifiés, comme vous, qui pourraient étre nommés
directeurs de I'institut, sans qu’on ne doive aller les chercher a
’extérieur du Canada? Je constate que les quatre candidats
que vous avez proposés étaient tous des Canadiens. En tant que
Canadien, je suis convaincu que nous avons suffisamment
d’expérience, de compétence et de sagesse pour qu'il soit
possible de trouver 16 directeurs au Canada. Qu’en pensez-
vous?

M. Sigler: Je conviens qu’il ne serait pas difficile de trouver
16 candidats. Il s’agit plutdt de déterminer 'orientation qu’on
veut prendre et de tenir compte du degré d’engagement
d’autres directeurs qui viendraient d’ailleurs. J'envisage une
situation ou Ottawa deviendrait une sorte de base, un centre
important de consultations internationales. Vous signaleriez
ainsi qu’a ce sujet, vous partagez ’avis d’autres pays. Je ne sais
pas combien il y en aurait, mais je crois que le principe est
encore plus important que celui que vous avez énoncé et que
j’appuie entiérement.

Nous avons, je crois, lancé un mouvement et je voudrais que
d’autres pays suivent notre exemple. Nous enrichissons le
réseau transnational qui nous donnerait le moyen de résoudre
le probléme de la confrontation entre les Etats.

M. Kilgour: Merci.
Le président: Madame Beauchamp-Niquet.

Mrs. Beauchamp-Niquet: I have a point of order, Mr.
Chairman, concerning our next witness.

The Chairman: Thank you very much. How does it concern
our witness? Did you want to know whether Mr. LeBlanc
would agree to address the committee in English?

Mrs. Beauchamp-Niquet: We allowed the other witness to
address the committee in his own language, and I think that
we should also let Mr. LeBlanc address the committee in the
language of his choice. That is what I propose, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: I do not see any problem with that. Fine.
Mr. Watson.

Le président: D’accord. Monsieur Watson.
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Mr. Watson: I just wondered, Mr. Chairman, if the
witnesses could express any criticisms of the Bill. Do they have
any suggestions for improvement? So far we have just heard
total praise. Is there nothing wrong with it at all?

The Chairman: The question was put before, Mr. Watson.

Mr. Watson: I did not hear any criticism though.

Mr. Kharas: What we replied was that we have no criticism
of the concept of the substance of the Bill. In fact, we quite
welcome the establishment of the institute. There might be
some fine tuning to do with regard to the mechanics of it,
which might come at a later stage, but as far as the basic
thrust and the establishment of the institute, the association
welcomes it.

Mr. Watson: There is enough flexibility built into it. As you
can see, you have your potential international input; you have
freedom to bring in whomever you like within Canada. Is there
anything else, Dr. Sigler?

Dr. Sigler: I think it was extremely important that you went
through the kind of inter-party exchanges, however, that were
done. We followed all of that. For outsiders now to go back,
after you have gone almost item by item through this... I
think it does emerge strengthened by the kind of responsive-
ness that was demonstrated by the authors of the original Bill,
that in fact those concerns could well be accommodated. And
you are right, I shared many of those same concerns when they
were raised, but I was happy to see that the outcome of this
was in fact a mutual responsiveness, which suggested it was
important to get on with the concept of the institute.

The Chairman: Again, on behalf of my colleagues, I wish to
thank both Mr. Kharas and Dr. Sigler for appearing on such
short notice, and thank you very much for having prepared a
paper. I should indicate to you, Dr. Sigler, that we will include
your biography in the proceedings of our committee. Thank
you very much, gentlemen.

Mr. Kharas: Thank you.

Le président: J'invite maintenant M. Napoléon LeBlanc, le
représentant du Centre québécois de relations internationales,
a qui nous allons demander de présenter son mémoire en
frangais dans I’espoir que le plus grand nombre de membres
possible la comprendront et qu’ils accepteront les difficultés
techniques que nous subissons. La premiére partie du témoi-
gnage a été présentée en anglais et cette deuxiéme le sera en
francais.

Monsieur LeBlanc, il nous fait plaisir de vous accueillir. Et
¢a, c’est le Canada!

M. Kilgour: J'invoque le Réglement, monsieur le président.
Le président: M.Kilgour invoque le Réglement.

i M. Kilgour: Il semblerait que la piéce en face de celle-ci soit
libre. S’il s’agit d'un probléme technique, nous pourrions peut-
étre nous y rendre?

The Chairman: I am informed, for the benefit of your
colleagues, that we are being recorded, nevertheless. So there
would have to be a rearrangement if we were to move to

[Traduction]

M. Watson: Je voudrais demander aux témoins, monsieur le
président, s’il y a des dispositions du projet de loi qui ne leur
plaisent pas. Pourrait-il étre amélioré? Jusqu’ici, tout le monde
le porte aux nues. Faut-il donc conclure qu’il est parfait?

Le président: La question a déja été posée, monsieur
Watson.

M. Watson: Si on I’a critiqué, je ne I’ai pas entendu.

M. Kharas: Nous avons répondu que nous ne trouvions rien
a critiquer 4 la notion qui sous-tend le projet de loi. Au
contraire, nous favorisons I’établissement de linstitut. Le
mécanisme pourrait éventuellement étre ajusté, mais I’associa-
tion est favorable a 1’établissement de I'institut.

M. Watson: C’est déja assez souple. Comme vous pouvez le
constater, il y a une possibilité de participation internationale;
au Canada, on peut nommer qui on veut. Y a-t-il autre chose,
monsieur Sigler?

M. Sigler: On ne saurait sous-estimer I'importance des
échanges qui ont eu lieu entre les partis. Nous les avons
d’ailleurs suivis. Vous avez étudié le projet de loi presque
article par article, et le fait de permettre a des gens de
I’extérieur ... Le fait que les auteurs ont su réagir aux
préoccupations et en tenir compte a, je crois, renforcé le projet
de loi. Vous avez raison de dire que j’ai partagé les préoccupa-
tions qui ont été exprimées, mais j’ai €té heureux de constater
que les intéressés ont bien réagi, ce qui laisse entendre que
I'important, ¢’était de travailler sur la notion de I'établissement
d’un institut.

Le président: Encore une fois, au nom de mes collégues, je
tiens a remercier et M. Kharas et M. Sigler d’avoir accepté de
comparaitre avec si peu de préavis. Je vous remercie également
d’avoir préparé un exposé. Je vous signale, monsieur Sigler,
que vos notes biographiques seront annexées au compte rendu
de la séance. Je vous remercie, messieurs.

M. Kharas: Merci.

The Chairman: I will now ask Mr. Napoléon LeBlanc, from
the Centre québécois de relations internationales, to come
forward. We will ask him to do his presentation in French, in
the hope that as many members as possible will understand
him and will sympathize with the technical problems that we
are having. The first witness testified in English and the second
one will testify in French.

We are pleased to welcome you, Mr. LeBlanc. This is what
Canada is all about!

Mr. Kilgour: On a point of order, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman: Mr. Kilgour, on a point of order.

Mr. Kilgour: It seems that the room just across the hall is
empty. If we are having technical problems, we could perhaps
move to that room.

Le président: Je signale, pour la gouverne de vos collégues,
que la séance sera enregistrée quand méme. Pour changer de
salle, il faudrait prendre d’autres arrangements. S’il y a des



1522

Canadian Institute for International Peace and Security

22-5-1984

[Text]

another room. If there are any questions, you and I will try,
Mr. Kilgour, to translate to your colleagues, Mr. Stewart and
Mr. McLean.
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J'ai le plaisir d’accueillir M. Napoléon LeBlanc, qui a fait sa
carriére a I'Université Laval. Il fut doyen de la Faculté des
sciences sociales de 1961 4 1967 et vice-recteur de I’Université
Laval de 1967 a 1972. Il a été membre du Conseil des arts du
Canada de 1964 a 1970 et, en cette qualité, il fut président de
la Commission canadienne pour 'UNESCO de 1967 a 1970. Il
fut aussi membre du Conseil de recherche pour la défense de
1968 a 1971. Il a été chef de la délégation canadienne aux 15¢,
16° et 17¢ sessions de la Conférence générale de 'UNESCO,
chef adjoint et conseiller de la délégation aux 18° et 19¢
sessions, et fut élu président de la Conférence générale de la
20° session. Il fut aussi membre du Conseil exécutif de
I'UNESCO de 1970 a 1974. 1l est actuellement président du
Centre québécois de relations internationales.

Il ne fait aucun doute que M. LeBlanc saura intéresser les
membres du Sous-comité. M. LeBlanc n’a pas de mémoire a
présenter, mais il fera peut-étre quelques remarques et
répondra ensuite aux questions. Je veux dés maintenant le
remercier bien sincérement d’avoir accepté notre invitation. Je
suis convaincu que, grice a sa trés riche expérience, M.
LeBlanc apportera une contribution marquante aux travaux du
Sous-comité.

Monsieur LeBlanc, vous avez la parole.

M. Napoléon LeBlanc (directeur, Centre québécois de
relations internationales): Si le systtme d’interprétation ne
fonctionne pas, je vais parler en frangais, mais trés lentement,
en essayant d’éviter les mots trop francais et d’utiliser le plus
possible des mots qu'on retrouve assez facilement dans la
langue anglaise. De cette fagon, j'espére que nous pourrons
entamer un dialogue qui soit utile pour les membres du
Comité.

En premier lieu, je voudrais donner des précisions sur un
point. Je suis actuellement un professeur a la retraite. Je
n’exerce plus mes fonctions a I'Université Laval depuis 1982,
mais [I'Université Laval m'a demandé, au moment ol je
quittais, si j'accepterais d’étre de nouveau nommé, pour la
quatrieme fois, membre de la société qui est responsable du
fonctionnement du Centre québécois de relations internationa-
les. Pourquoi «québécois»? Pour que ce soit bien clair dans nos
esprits, disons que c’est tout simplement parce qu’il est situé
dans la province de Québec. Dans le Centre, on trouve l'une
des cinq chaires d’études militaires et stratégiques qui existent
au Canada. La deuxiéme mission du Centre est d’étudier la
politique étrangére du gouvernement du Canada. Enfin, a
cause de notre association avec I'Institut canadien des affaires
internationales, le Centre est responsable d’assurer les
fonctions de secrétariat de langue frangaise de I'Institut, ce qui
comprend des sections francophones de I'Institut qui existent
non seulement dans la province de Québec, mais aussi dans les
provinces Maritimes et dans la province de ’Ontario.

[Translation]

questions, monsieur Kilgour, nous tenterons, vous et moi, de
traduire pour nos collégues, M. Stewart et M. McLean.

I have the pleasure of welcoming Mr. Napoléon LeBlanc,
who has pursued his career at Laval University. He was Dean
of the Social Sciences Faculty from 1961 to 1967 and Vice-
Rector of Laval University from 1967 to 1972. He was a
member of the Canada Council from 1964 to 1970 and, in this
capacity, chaired the Canadian Commission for UNESCO
from 1967 to 1970. He was also a member of the Defence
Research Council from 1968 to 1971. He led the Canadian
delegation to the 15th, 16th and 17th sessions of the UNESCO
General Assembly, was assistant director of and advisor to the
delegation to the 18th and 19th sessions, and was elected
Chairman of the General Assembly of the 20th session. He
was a member of the UNESCO Executive Council from 1970
to 1974 and is now President of the Centre québécois de
relations internationales.

There is no doubt that Mr. LeBlanc will be an interesting
witness. He has not prepared a written statement, but he will
make a few opening remarks and then answer your questions. I
would now like to thank you most sincerely for having
accepted our invitation. I am convinced that with his wealth of
experience, Mr. LeBlanc will make a significant contribution
to the work of the sub-committee.

You have the floor, Mr. LeBlanc.

Mr. Napoléon LeBlanc (Director, Centre québécois de
relations internationales): Since the translation is not
working, I will speak in French, but very slowly, trying to
avoid words that are too French and using as many words as
possible that are commonly found in the English language. I
hope that, by doing this, we will be able to open a dialogue that
will be useful to members of the committee.

I would first like to make something clear. I am, at this
time, a retired professor. I left my position at Laval University
in 1982, but the university asked me, when I left, if I would
agree to be appointed for the fourth time as a member of the
corporation that is responsible for the operation of the Centre
québécois de relations internationales. Why “québécois™? So
that it is clear in our minds, let us say that is simply because it
is located in the Province of Québec. The centre has one of the
five military and strategic studies chairs that exist in Canada.
It’s second mission is to study the federal government’s foreign
policy. And, because of our association with the Canadian
Institute of International Affairs, the centre is responsible for
acting as a French-language secretariat to the institute. This
includes the institute’s French-speaking sections not only in
Quebec, but also in the Maritimes and in Ontario.
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Cela dit, si vous me demandez qui sont les membres du
Centre, je vous répondrai tout de suite que ce sont, d’une part,
un groupe de cinq professeurs qui enseignent a I'Université
Laval dans les domaines des sciences politiques, de la politique
étrangére et des études stratégiques et militaires, et, d’autre
part, quatre personnes nommées par I'Institut canadien des
affaires internationales. Le Centre comme tel a des conven-
tions d’association avec I'Université et avec I'Institut canadien
des affaires internationales.

En ce qui concerne I'Université, la raison d’étre de son
association, c’est I’occasion que lui offre le Centre d’apporter
une contribution au progrés des études avancées, c’est-a-dire
de deuxiéme et de troisiéme cycle, 4 I’'Université Laval. Pour
autant, le conseil d’administration est responsable de I’appro-
bation des programmes d’études, des programmes de recherche
et, en méme temps, de la supervision de I’activité des sections
francophones de I'Institut canadien des affaires internationa-
les.
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Je veux limiter mes observations devant ce Comité & deux
volets. Dans le cadre des études qui se poursuivent au Centre
sur la politique étrangére du Canada, nous avons publié
récemment le premier volume d’une série de deux qui réunit
des matériaux, des éléments pour I’étude de la politique
étrangére du Canada, et nous couvrons les cinq régions du
monde. Il en est de méme en ce qui concerne les études
militaires et stratégiques. Nous formons des étudiants. Nous
ne donnons pas de diplome en études militaires et stratégiques,
mais nous permettons a des étudiants en sciences politiques,
des étudiants en droit et des étudiants en administration de
travailler sur des aspects que posent les problémes de sécurité
et de paix. Par conséquent, je ne I’ai pas apportée, mais je
pourrais vous la faire parvenir, monsieur le président, si vous le
désirez, la liste des publications.

Le président: Je vous remercie beaucoup, monsieur LeBlanc.

Pouvez-vous me dire si le Centre québécois de relations
internationales est semblable au Norman Paterson School of
International Affairs de 1!'Universit¢é de Carleton? Clest
sensiblement les mémes . . .

M. LeBlanc: C’est-a-dire que sur le plan de I'intention, c’est
la méme chose.

Le président: C’est la méme chose.

M. LeBlanc: Sur le plan de la structure, c’est un peu
différent.

Le président: Vous poursuivez, en fait, les mémes buts?

M. LeBlanc: C’est cela! Nous désirons, premiérement, faire
une étude, et en méme temps une étude critique, de la politique
étrangére du Canada et, deuxiémement, travailler a4 former
une opinion publique éclairée. C’est 4 cause de ces deux
dimensions que le projet visant a constituer un institut de
recherche pour la paix et la sécurité internationales nous
intéresse au plus haut point.

Loin de voir un concurrent dans cet éventuel institut, nous
tendons a y voir un instrument qui va stimuler la réflexion

[Traduction]

This being said, if you ask me who the centre’s members are,
I will tell you at the outset that they are, on one hand, a group
of five professors who teach at Laval University in the fields of
political science, foreign policy and strategic and military
studies and, on the other hand, four people appointed by the
Canadian Institute of International Affairs. The centre has
signed agreements associating itself with Laval University and
the Canadian Institute of International Affairs.

Insofar as the University is concerned, the raison d’étre of
this association is that the Centre provides it with an opportu-
nity to contribute to the advancement of graduate studies at
Laval, at the master’s and doctorate levels. The Board of
Directors is responsible for approving study and research
programs and for supervising the activities of the francophone
sections of the Canadian Institute of International Affairs.

I will limit my remarks before the committee to two aspects.
In the context of the centre’s current study on Canadian
foreign policy, we recently published the first volume of a
series of two which provides material that can be used for a
study of Canadian foreign policy and we are covering the five
regions of the world. The same is true of our military and
strategic studies. We train students. We do not offer degrees in
military and strategic studies, but we do make it possible for
political science, law and administration students to work on
the problems of peace and security. I have not brought the list
of publications with me, but I could send it on to you, Mr.
Chairman, if you wish.

The Chairman: Thank you very much, Mr. LeBlanc.

Could you tell me whether the Centre québécois de relations
internationales is similar to Carleton University’s Norman
Paterson School of International Affairs? It is more or less the
same. . .

Mr. LeBlanc: The intent is the same.

The Chairman: It is the same thing.
Mr. LeBlanc: Structurally, it is slightly different.

The Chairman: But your goals are the same.

Mr. LeBlanc: That is right. Ours are to study and critically
study Canadian foreign policy and to work on enlightening the
public. That is why the two dimensions of the bill establishing
a research institute for international peace and security is of
such great interest to us.

We do not see the institute as a competitor, far from it; we
tend to see it as an instrument that will encourage Canadians
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canadienne. Si vous me le permettez, si 'UNESCO a encore
une certaine crédibilité 4 la suite des événements qui se
passent ... J'ai été & méme de constater jusqu’a quel point le
Canada est bien vu de toutes les personnes, de toutes les
régions du monde avec lesquelles il m’a été donné de travailler.
Je continue, pour ma part, me référant 4 mes expériences
personnelles, & accorder un préjugé favorable aux principaux
intervenants dans le contexte actuel, parce que d’une part —
c'est réel —, I’opinion publique a une force telle qu’elle peut
contribuer a informer ou a infléchir certaines attitudes ou
certaines politiques et que, d’autre part, il y a des gens qui
n'attendent que ce moment, ou pourront se dégager des
espaces pour la liberté, pour tenter d’intervenir. Cependant,
aussi longtemps ‘que cela se limitera 4 des individus dispersés
ici et 14, je crois qu’il sera illusoire de s’attendre a des change-
ments déterminants. Mais donnons la chance au temps.

A mon avis, une de nos préoccupations, dans le contexte
actuel, c’est d’étre capable de lire la réalité et d’y percevoir les
¢léments de possible qu’elle comporte. Moi, je me dis: la réalité
actuelle ne comporte pas une tendance fataliste. Au contraire,
elle comporte des éléments d’espoir. Ce qui fait sa complexité,
ce n’est pas tant le fait que nous évoluons maintenant dans des
sphéres de trés haute sophistication au point de vue du
développement scientifique et de son application, mais surtout
le fait que le probléme, aujourd’hui, a une portée internatio-
nale. Que nous soyons a Lomé au Togo, 4 Nairobi au Kenya, a
Montréal, a Ottawa ou n'importe ou au Canada, les gens
réagissent de la méme fagon. On trouve des gens qui sont
préoccupés par la guerre, qui sont préoccupés par la paix.
C’est-a-dire que lorsque je dis la guerre, je dis la paix, parce
que dans I'esprit des gens, on ne leur apporte rien en leur
disant: Eh bien, nous avons évité la guerre. Dans I’esprit des
gens, la paix est autre chose que la non-guerre.
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Je reviens au concept d’espace de liberté auquel je me suis
référé tout a I'heure, et 1a, je pense que je suis en bonne
compagnie, parce que M. Robert McNamara, lorsqu’il a quitté
la Banque mondiale, disait, dans ce fameux volume intitulé
The Essence of Security: La sécurité, d’accord, dépend des
armes les plus sophistiquéss, les plus puissantes; c’est un volet.
Mais I'autre volet, le plus important peut-étre, c’est que nous
travaillions a réaliser des conditions qui permettent i tout
homme de se développer selon sa conscience, selon ses
aspirations et en toute liberté. Personnellement, je crois que si
cet institut devait voir le jour, ce serait peut-étre la fagon la
plus habile pour le Canada, en se plagant dans une perspective
a moyen et 4 long terme, de jouer efficacement son role de
puissance secondaire.

Permettez-moi d’évoquer ici une conversation que j’ai eue
I'an dernier 4 I'Université Laval avec un étudiant zairois
diplomé en droit, qui a fait une maitrise en sciences politiques
a I'Université de Toronto et qui aurait souhaité venir a
I'Université Laval pour y faire son doctorat. Ce qui le préoccu-
pait, c’était précisément le role des puissances secondaires, en
particulier le Canada, comme intervenants efficaces suscepti-
bles d’exercer une action efficace, en particulier sur les deux
grandes puissances, et sur celles qui les environnent.

[Translation)

to think. If UNESCO still has a certain amount of credibility
in the light of what is happening . .. I was able to see to what
extent Canada is well regarded by everyone, in all of the parts
of the world in which it was given to me to work. Based on my
personal experience, I continue to have a positive attitude
towards the main players in the current context because, on
one hand—and this is a very real thing—public opinion is so
powerful that it can inform or change the direction of certain
attitudes and policies and, on the other, there are people who
are just waiting for the time when we are able to make room
for freedom and who will try to intervene when that time
comes. But as long as this is limited to individuals who are
scattered about here and there, I think that we would be
fooling ourselves if we expected significant change. But give
time a chance.

I think that one of our concerns, in the current context, is
that we be able to read the situation and determine its
potential. I tell myself that the current situation does not show
a fatalistic tendency. On the contrary, there are elements of
hope. What makes it complex is not so much that we are
evolving in spheres that are highly sophisticated in terms of
scientific development and their applications, but rather the
fact that the problem is international in scope. Whether you
are in Lomé, Togo; Nairobi, Kenya; Montreal, Ottawa, or
anywhere in Canada, people react the same way. You find
people who are concerned about war and concerned about
peace. When I say war, I mean peace, because in people’s
minds, it does not mean anything to them if you say: We
avoided war. In people’s minds, peace is not simply the absence
of war.

I would like to go back to the concept of room for freedom,
which I referred to earlier. I think that there I am in good
company because Mr. Robert McNamara, when he left the
World Bank, said in the famous work entitled “The Essence of
Security”: Security does depend on the most sophisticated and
powerful weaponry; that is one aspect. But the other aspect,
which is perhaps the most important one, is that we work on
bringing about conditions in which everyone can develop
freely, according to his conscience and his aspirations. I
personally believe that, if the Institute were to become a
reality, it would perhaps be the best way for Canada, in the
medium and long term, to play an effective role as a medium
power.

Let me refer to a conversation that I had last year at Laval
with a student from Zaire who had a law degree, who had
done a masters in political science at the University of Toronto
and who wanted to come to Laval to do his doctorate. He was
concerned about the role of medium powers, particularly
Canada, as effective players able to take effective action,
particularly vis-d-vis the two major superpowers and their
allies.
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Pour revenir 4 ce que je disais, je crois que cet institut va
élargir le débat. Je crois comprendre que d’aprés le mandat qui
lui sera imparti, il aura 4 déborder la simple question des
problémes militaires et stratégiques et 4 aborder les problémes
internationaux, les problémes de la paix, les problémes de la
sécurité, dans une perspective réellement humaniste et
culturelle, parce que spirituelle. La culture, c’est dans I’esprit.

Le président: Merci.

M. LeBlanc: C’est ce que j'avais a dire. Je peux maintenant
répondre aux questions.

Le président: M. Kilgour et M™ Beauchamp-Niquet.
Monsieur Kilgour.
M. Kilgour: Merci, monsieur le président.

Au nom de I'Opposition officielle et de notre chef, M.
Mulroney, je vous remercie vivement d’étre venu, surtout dans
des circonstances épouvantables au point de vue du systéme
d’interprétation.

Permettez-moi de vous poser quelques questions, monsieur.
Est-ce que votre groupe est en mesure de proposer des noms de
candidats pour le poste de directeur de cet institut, comme I’a
fait le témoin précédent? Nous, nous considérons qu’il est trés
important que des groupes comme le votre proposent des noms
de candidats pour le poste de premier directeur de cet institut.
Est-ce que vous avez quelques mots a dire sur cette question?

M. LeBlanc: Non, il ne nous est pas venu a l'esprit de
réfléchir sur cette question-la. Nous nous sommes référés a la
tradition du Canada, par exemple lorsqu’il s’est agi de nommer
les membres, aprés avoir constitué¢ le Conseil des arts. Le
Conseil de recherche pour la défense n’existe plus aujourd’hui,
mais c’est également le gouvernement du Canada qui nommait
les membres. La garantie, pour moi, se trouve dans la briéveté
des mandats; il s’agit d’'un mandat de trois ans qui peut étre
reconduit. Mais dans I’ensemble, on peut prévoir qu’il y aura
un renouvellement des administrateurs. Je crois que la
véritable santé de 'organisme va résider davantage dans le
renouvellement éventuel des membres que dans I'intervention
de groupes comme le mien ou d’autres groupes similaires dans
la nomination des personnes.
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J'aurais une observation a faire. Je suis résidant de la
province de Québec et j'ai été membre du Conseil supérieur de
I’éducation. J'ai également été membre du Comité catholique
du conseil supérieur de I’éducation et on avait mis en marche
une énorme structure de consultation. Mais on n’en finit plus!
Personnellement, puisque vous me demandez mon avis, je suis
porté a accorder le préjugé favorable au gouverneur en conseil,
comme on I'appelle ici. On va nommer des personnes qui vont
réfléchir sur les diverses tendances ou les différents courants
de pensée qui existent au Canada dans des secteurs qui sont

pertinents au mandat que I'on veut confier au centre ou a
I'institut.

M. Kilgour: Excusez-moi, mais recevez-vous les procés-
verbaux de la Chambre des communes la-bas? Avez-vous un
exemplaire du projet de loi?

[Traduction]

To go back to what I was saying, I believe that the Institute
will broaden the debate. I gather that it will be mandated to
look at strategic and military problems, international prob-
lems, peace problems and security problems in a truly humani-
tary and cultural, almost spiritual, perspective. Culture is in
the mind.

The Chairman: Thank you.

Mr. LeBlanc: That was my statement. I am now prepared to
answer your questions.

The Chairman: Mr. Kilgour and Mrs. Beauchamp-Niquet.
Mr. Kilgour.
Mr. Kilgour: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

On behalf of the Official Opposition and our leader, Mr.
Mulroney, I would like to thank you very much for having
come, especially given the awful situation that we are in terms
of translation.

Allow me to ask you a few questions, sir. Is your group able
to propose candidates for the directorship of the Institute, as
the previous witness did? We feel that it is very important that
groups like yours nominate candidates for the position of first
Director of the Institute. Could you say a few words on this?

Mr. LeBlanc: It never occured to us to give any thought to
it. When the Canada Council was set up, for example, and
members had to be appointed, we relied on Canadian tradition.
The Defence Research Council no longer exists, but its
members were also federally appointed. In my mind, the
safeguard is in the shortness of the mandates; it is a three year
mandate that can be renewed. But you can generally tell when
there will be a change of administration. I believe that the
health of the organization will depend more on the renewal of
its membership than on involvement of groups like mine or
other similar groups in the appointment process.

I do have one comment however. I am a resident of the
Province of Québec and I was a member of the Conseil
supérieur de I'éducation. 1 was also a member of the Catholic
Committee of the Conseil supérieur de I’éducation and we set
up a huge consultation structure. But there was no end to it!
Personally, since you have asked for my opinion, I am inclined
to favour the Governor-in-Council, as he is called here. The
people who are appointed will reflect the various trends and
ideas that are current in the sectors relevant to the Institute’s
mandate.

Mr. Kilgour: Excuse me, but do you get Hansard down
there? Do you have a copy of the Bill?
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Le président: Le projet de loi, je crois.

M. LeBlanc: J’ai le projet de loi mais pas les procés-
verbaux.

M. Kilgour: C’est dommage car, comme le président le sait,
il y a eu beaucoup de discussions entre les partis au cours des
derniéres semaines, et je crois que le gouvernement a accepté
notre suggestion de rencontrer des groupes comme, par
exemple, I’Association canadienne des Nations Unies, afin
qu’ils nous suggerent des noms pour le choix des premiers
directeurs.

Nous sommes fortement persuadés que, de cette fagon, on
pourrait avoir le maximum d’indépendance et d’intégrité pour
éviter toute forme de partisanerie dans cet institut. Je me
demande si vous ne pourriez pas nous soumettre vos sugges-
tions de noms, maintenant si vous le pouvez ou plus tard sous
forme de lettre. Pouvez-vous proposer quelqu’un que vous
considérez comme une personne bien qualifiée, du Québec ou
d’ailleurs, pour remplir le poste de directeur de cet institut?
Qui souhaiteriez-vous avoir comme directeur? Vous pouvez
soumettre plusieurs noms, je vous laisse le choix. Si vous
voulez disposer d’un peu de temps pour réfléchir, vous pouvez
nous le faire savoir par lettre, le plus tot possible quand méme.
Je sais bien qu’il est assez difficile de répondre a cette ques-
tion.

M. LeBlanc: Je suis disposé a considérer la question tout en
laissant la latitude nécessaire au gouverneur en conseil pour ce
qui est de nommer les personnes qu'il . . .

M. Kilgour: On a proposé que le gouverneur en conseil
nomme des gens uniquement parmi les noms proposés par les
groupes et par certains individus, mais on a spécifié un certain
nombre de groupes. On est bien préts, chez nous, 4 augmenter
le nombre de ces groupes-la. Je me demande si votre groupe
voudrait également proposer des noms. Est-ce que vous voulez
étre considéré comme un groupe qui aurait droit aussi de
proposer des noms?

M. LeBlanc: On ne se considére pas comme un groupe ayant
le droit de nommer quelqu’un, mais on se considére comme
étant un groupe vivement intéressé 4 tirer partie des ressources
intellectuelles et scientifiques que I'institut va réunir.

M. Kilgour: Je sais que c’est bien difficile pour vous parce
que vous n’étes pas au courant des négociations, mais chez
nous, nous avons proposé une liste d’environ 25 groupes ou
organisations représentatives, soit la Fédération des travail-
leurs du Québec qui, a notre avis, devrait avoir le droit de
proposer des noms mais pas les directeurs toutefois. C'est le
gouverneur en conseil qui doit nommer les premiers directeurs.
Selon nous, et selon I'avis de nos collégues libéraux également,
il n’y aurait que les groupes qui pourraient proposer des noms,
parmi lesquels on choisirait les directeurs. Est-ce que vous me
suivez?

M. LeBlanc: Oui, oui.

M. Kilgour: Alors, je me demande si, par exemple, vous
désirez étre considéré comme un groupe faisant partie de cette
liste, dans I’éventualité ou on proposerait un amendement a ce
projet de loi prochainement ou plus tard.

[Translation)
The Chairman: The Bill, I believe.

Mr. LeBlanc: I have a copy of the Bill, but not of Hansard.

Mr. Kilgour: That is unfortunate because, as the Chairman
knows, there has been a great deal of discussion amongst the
parties over the past few weeks and I believe that the govern-
ment agreed to our suggestion to meet with groups like the
Canadian United Nations Association and to have them
suggest names of possible directorship candidates.

We are absolutely convinced that this will give us the
maximum degree of independance and integrity and ensure
that the Institute is non-partisan. I wonder whether you might
not suggest some names, either now or later in writing. Could
you suggest a name of someone whom you consider to be well
qualified, from Québec or elsewhere, to direct the Institute?
Who would you like to see as Director? You can suggest
several names, it is up to you. If you would like to take some
time to think about it, you can send it to us in writing, albeit as
quickly as possible. I know that it is a fairly difficult question.

Mr. LeBlanc: I am prepared to consider it. While leaving
the Governor-in-Council with the latitude he needs to appoint

-the people that he . . .

Mr. Kilgour: It has been proposed that the Governor-in-
Council choose appointees from among the names proposed by
groups and certain individuals, but a certain number of groups
were specified. We on our side are prepared to increase the
number of groups. I would like to know whether your group
would also like to propose names. Would you like to be one of
the groups that is entitled to propose names?

Mr. LeBlanc: We do not feel that we are entitled to propose
names, but we do consider ourselves to be a group that is very
much interested in drawing on the scientific and intellectual
resources that the Institute will bring together.

Mr. Kilgour: 1 know that this is very difficult for you,
because you do not know what happened during the negotia-
tions; but our party proposed a list of approximately 25
representative groups and organizations, including the
Fédération des travailleurs du Québec who, in our opinion,
should be entitled to propose names but not to appoint
directors. The directors should be appointed by the Governor-
in-Council. In our opinion, and in the opinion of our Liberal
colleagues as well, all that the groups would be able to do
would be to propose names, and the Directors would be chosen
from among them. Do you follow me?

Mr. LeBlanc: Yes.

Mr. Kilgour: I would like to know then whether you would
like to be one of the groups who is on this list. If an amend-
ment were proposed to the Bill either in the near future or
later on.
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M. LeBlanc: Je peux vous donner une réponse personnelle
immédiatement, mais il faudrait que je consulte les membres
de la corporation que je préside.

M. Kilgour: Je comprends.

M. LeBlanc: J’en prends note et je vais leur en parler.

M. Kilgour: D’accord. Merci.

Le président: Merci.

Madame Beauchamp-Niquet.

Mme Beauchamp-Niquet: Merci, monsieur le président.

Tout d’abord, je voudrais féliciter M. LeBlanc pour le beau
travail qu’il accomplit au niveau du Centre québécois de
relations internationales. On est trés fiers de ce centre et de
ceux qui y oeuvrent.
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M. LeBlanc vient de répondre 4 ma premiére question que
j'avais formulée ainsi: considérez-vous que la mise sur pied de
I'Institut canadien pour la paix et la sécurité mondiales
pourrait concurrencer ou compléter ce que vous faites déja?
Vous avez répondu que vous le considériez comme un complé-
ment.

Alors, ma deuxiéme question est la suivante: vous avez
certainement pris connaissance du projet de loi C-32; est-ce
que vous auriez des suggestions & formuler pour changer
quelque article que ce soit ou pour améliorer peut-étre le
libellé de ce projet de 10i? Vous pourriez peut-étre donner des
précisions sur certaines de vos suggestions.

M. LeBlanc: En toute honnéteté, je dois vous dire que j’ai ce
document depuis le 17 avril. Je I’ai lu et relu et je I’ai méme
médité.

Je I'ai relu 4 la lumiére de tous les gestes qui ont été posés
au Canada, en relation avec la paix et la sécurité. Il arrive que
J’ai également participé, il y a un mois exactement, au colloque
annuel qui réunit tous les responsables des chaires et des
études, militaires et stratégiques. Et franchement, en mon dme
et conscience, je trouve ce projet satisfaisant. Je n’y vois pas
d’ambiguité. Je voudrais qu’on le respecte avant qu'il soit né,
car on lui laisse une certaine marge de manoeuvre.

Si on le définit trop, on I'étouffe. Si on laisse un peu
d’espace—et j'ai parlé tout a I’heure d’espace et de liberté—un
organisme de cette nature a besoin de liberté vis-a-vis du
gouvernement et je crois d’ailleurs que c’est l'intention du
gouvernement en cette matiére. De plus, il doit avoir la liberté
également envers des actions et des initiatives qu’il voudrait
prendre.

Mme Beauchamp-Niquet: Monsieur le président, j'aurais
une proposition a faire. Est-ce que notre témoin accepterait de
revenir ce soir? Lors de la réunion de 20h00, nous devons
accueillir d’autres témoins et on pourrait peut-étre lui réserver
un petit dix minutes pour d’autres questions.

Le président: Si c’est le désir des membres du Comité, on
pourrait inviter M. LeBlanc a4 nouveau a 20h00 ce soir, pour

[Traduction]

Mr. LeBlanc: I could give you a personal answer immedi-
ately, but I would have to consult the members of my corpora-
tion.

Mr. Kilgour: I understand.

Mr. LeBlanc: I have made a note of it and I will talk to
them about it. i

Mr. Kilgour: Fine. Thank you.

The Chairman: Thank you.

Mrs. Beauchamp-Niquet.

Mrs. Beauchamp-Niquet: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I would first like to congratulate Mr. LeBlanc on the fine
work that he has done at the Centre québécois de relations
internationales. We are very proud of this Centre and of those
who work there.

Mr. LeBlanc has just answered my first question, which
was: Do you feel that the establishment of a Canadian
Institute for International Peace and Security would compete
with or complement what you are already doing? You
answered that you thought it would be complementary.

My second question is this: You have certainly read Bill
C-32; do you have any suggestions as to how any of its
provisions could be changed to perhaps improve the wording of
the legislation? Perhaps you could tell us about them.

Mr. LeBlanc: I must say in all honesty that I have had the
Bill since April 17th. I have read it and reread it and I have
even meditated on it.

I reread it in the light of everything that has been done in
Canada in relation to peace and security. It so happens that I
also participated, exactly a month ago, in an annual seminar
that brought together all of the directors of military and
strategic chairs and studies. And frankly, in all good con-
science, I find the Bill satisfactory. I do not see any ambigui-
ties. I would like it to be respected even before it is created,
because we leave it a certain amount of room to manoeuvre.

If we define it too much, we will smother it. If we leave it
some room—and I talked earlier about room for freedom—
this type of organization needs to be free vis-a-vis the govern-
ment and I think that that was the government’s intent. It
should also have a certain amount of freedom insofar as its
initiatives and actions are concerned.

Mrs. Beauchamp-Niquet: I have a proposal, Mr. Chairman.
Would our witness agree to come back this evening? We will
be hearing other witnesses at 8:00 and we could perhaps set
aside ten minutes to question him.

The Chairman: If the members of the committee wish, we
could invite Mr. LeBlanc to appear again at 8:00 this evening,
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une autre demi-heure. En toute honnéteté, je n’aimerais pas
que M. LeBlanc se soit déplacé de Québec a Ottawa et qu’on
doive limiter ses questions et ses réponses sur ce sujet.

M. Massé: Monsieur le président, on pourrait peut-étre
demander I’avis de M. LeBlanc.

Le président: C’est une excellente suggestion, en effet.

M. LeBlanc: Cela me ferait plaisir, mais je serais prét a
venir & 19h30, pour une raison simple. J'ai deux fils qui
travaillent a la Fonction publique canadienne: le premier est
au ministére des Finances et 'autre au ministére de la Justice.
Je leur ai téléphoné lors de mon arrivée cet aprés-midi et je
dois diner avec eux ce soir. Je tiens a les rencontrer parce que
mon épouse est entrée d’urgence a I’hopital 4 9h30 et pour
cette raison, j’ai bien failli ne pas pouvoir venir.

Le président: Monsieur LeBlanc, certaines difficultés
techniques nous empéchent de siéger a4 19h30, soit la question
des employés, de I'interprétation et ainsi de suite. Néanmoins,
j'espere qu'il sera possible de vous réinviter a4 nouveau un peu
plus tard, avant la fin de notre session de consultation.

Au nom de mes collégues, je veux vous remercier bien
sincérement et vous souhaiter un bon diner. Nous faisons des
voeux pour le prompt et complet rétablissement de votre
épouse.

This committee stands adjourned.

Le séance du Comité est ajournée jusqu’a 20 heures ce soir,
dans cette méme piéce.

[Translation]

for another half hour. In all honesty, I would not like Mr.
LeBlanc to have come from Québec City to Ottawa and then
have a time limit placed on his questions and answers.

Mr. Massé: Perhaps we could ask Mr. LeBlanc what he
thinks, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: That is an excellent idea.

Mr. LeBlanc: I would be very pleased to come back but at
7:30 for a very simple reason. I have two sons who work for the
federal civil service: one in the Department of Finance and the
other in the Justice Department. I called them when I arrived
this afternoon and I am having dinner with them this evening.
I particularly want to meet with them because my wife was
taken into emergency at 9:30 this morning; in fact, I was
almost not able to come.

The Chairman: Technical problems make it impossible for
us to sit at 7:30, Mr. LeBlanc, because of the staff, the
interpretation, et cetera. But I hope that it will be possible to
have you back at some later date, to complete our consulta-
tions.

On behalf of my colleagues, I would like to thank you very
sincerely. I hope that you have a good dinner and I wish your
wife a full and speedy recovery.

La séance est levée.

The meeting is adjourned until 8:00 this evening in the same
room.
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[Text] [Traduction)

The Sub-committee of the Standing Committee on External
Affairs and National Defence on the Canadian Institute for
International Peace and Security met at 8:01 o’clock p.m. this
day, the Chairman, Mr. Dupras, presiding.

Members of the Sub-committee present: Mrs. Beauchamps-
Niquet, Mesrs. Dupras, Kilgour.

Alternates of the Sub-committee present: Messrs. King,
McRae.

In attendance: From the Parliamentary Centre for Foreign
Affairs and Foreign Trade: Mr. Roger Hill, Associate
Director.

Witnesses: From Veterans for Multilateral Nuclear
Disarmament: Mr. C.G. Gifford, co-founder; Mr. Gordon
Broady, Member. From the World Federalists of Canada: Mr.
Norman Alcock.

The Sub-committee resumed consideration of its Order of
Reference from the Committee dated Tuesday, May 22, 1984
relating to Bill C-32, An Act to establish the Canadian
Institute for International Peace and Security. (See Minutes of
Proceedings, Tuesday, May 22, 1984, Issue No. I).

Mr. Gifford made an opening statement and answered
questions.

It was agreed,—That the brief presented by the Veterans for
Multilateral Nuclear Disarmament be printed as an appendix
to this day’s Minutes of Proceedings and Evidence (See
Appendix “PAIX-I").

It was agreed,—That the last page of the “Statement of
Position™ presented by the Veterans for Multilateral Nuclear
Disarmament be printed as an appendix to this day’s Minutes
of Proceedings and Evidence. (See Appendix “PAIX-II").

At 8:59 o’clock p.m., the sitting was suspended.
At 9:04 o’clock p.m., the sitting resumed.

The Sub-committee resumed consideration of its Order of
Reference from the Committee dated Tuesday, May 22, 1984
relating to Bill C-32, An Act to establish the Canadian
Institute for International Peace and Security. (See Minutes of
Proceedings, Tuesday, May 22, 1984, Issue No. 1).

Mr. Alcock made an opening statement and answered
questions.

It was agreed,—That the memorandum presented by Mr.
Alcock be printed as an appendix to this day’s Minutes of
Proceedings and Evidence (See Appendix “PAIX-11I").

At 9:58 o'clock p.m., the Sub-committee adjourned to the
call of the Chair.

Le Sous-comité du Comité permanent des affaires extérieu-
res et de la défense nationale sur I'Institut canadien pour la
paix et la sécurité mondiales se réunit, ce jour a 20 h 01, sous
la présidence de M. Dupras (président).

Membres du Sous-comité présents: M™

Niquet, MM. Dupras, Kilgour.

Beauchamp-
Substituts du Sous-comité présents: MM. King, McRae.

Aussi présent: Du Centre parlementaire pour les affaires
étrangeres et le commerce extérieur: M. Roger Hill, directeur
associé.

Témoins: De «Veterans for Multilateral Nuclear Disarma-
ment»: M. C.G. Gifford, co-fondateur; M. Gordon Broady,
membre. De «World Federalists of Canada»: M. Norman
Alcock.

Le Sous-comité reprend I’examen de son ordre de renvoi du
mardi 22 mai 1984 relatif au projet de loi C-32, Loi consti-
tuant I’Institut canadien pour la paix et la sécurité mondiales.
(Voir Proces-verbal du mardi 22 mai 1984, fascicule n° 1).

M. Gifford fait une déclaration préliminaire et répond aux
questions.

Il est convenu,—Que le mémoire présenté par le «Veterans
for Multilateral Nuclear Disarmament» figure en annexe aux
Procés-verbaux et témoignages de ce jour (Voir Annexe
«PAIX-1»).

Il est convenu,—Que la derniére page du document intitulé
«Statement of Position», présenté par le «Veterans for Multi-
lateral Nuclear Disarmament» figure en annexe aux Proces-
verbaux et témoignages de ce jour (Voir Annexe «PAIX-1I»).

A 20 h 59, le Sous-comité interrompt les travaux.
A 21 h 04, le Sous-comité reprend les travaux.

Le Sous-comité reprend I'’examen de son ordre de renvoi
recu du Comité, le mardi 22 mai 1984, relatif au projet de loi
C-32, Loi constituant I'Institut canadien pour la paix et la
sécurité mondiales. (Voir Proceés-verbal du mardi 22 mai
1984, fascicule n° 1).

M. Alcock fait une déclaration préliminaire et répond aux
questions.

Il est convenu,—Que le mémoire présenté par M. Alcock
figure en annexe aux Procés-verbaux et témoignages de ce
jour (Voir Annexe «PAIX-II1»).

A 21 h 58, le Sous-comité suspend les travaux jusqu’a
nouvelle convocation du président.

Le greffier du Sous-comité

Michael Lukyniuk

Clerk of the Sub-committee
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Le président: A I'ordre, il vous plait!
Order, please. This committee will come to order.

I hope we find a way of fixing the sound equipment, and I
hope the simultaneous interpretation is now available. Can you
hear in the back? Good. Thank you very much.

The committee will pursue its consideration of Bill C-32.
The Standing Committee of External Affairs and National
Defence split the committee into two groups. This is known as
the B group, which has nothing to do with our qualifications; it
is in order to listen to and meet more witnesses. So the other
group of the standing committee is meeting with two groups of
witnesses tonight, and we are doing likewise. We are hoping
that this week we will hear at least 20 witnesses, who will have
a chance to go over with us some of the aspects of Bill C-32.

Tonight I am delighted and honoured to welcome a former
comrade of mine and former squadron leader, Mr. Gifford,
who represents the Veterans for Multilateral Nuclear Disar-
mament. Mr. Gifford was a squadron leader and navigator in
the Pathfinder Force of Bomber Command, flying in Lancast-
ers, and he completed 49 sorties, as we used to call them, over
Europe. He became a professional social worker after the war,
taught at McGill University and the Université de Montréal.
He was Director of the University of Manitoba and Dalhousie
School of Social Science. He was United Nations Social
Welfare Adviser in East Pakistan. Mr. and Mrs. Gifford have
four children and five grandchildren. He is the co-founder of
Veterans for Multilateral Nuclear Disarmament.

Along with Mr. Gifford is Mr. Carl Birchard, who is a social
worker. Also attending are Mrs. Charlotte Birchard who was a
social service officer in the Canadian Women’s Army Corps;
and Mr. Gordon Broady, who was in the Home Guards in
England. Both live in Ottawa and are among Ottawa’s
Veterans for Multilateral Nuclear Disarmament supporters.

We are delighted to have you all with us tonight, and we are
expecting that you will bring some enlightenment to our
consideration of Bill C-32.

Mr. Gifford, we have circulated your paper. I understand
you want to summarize your paper.

Mr. Kilgour: On a point of order, Mr. Chairman.
The Chairman: On a point of order, Mr. Kilgour.

Mr. Kilgour: If the witness would prefer to read it into the
record rather than try to summarize it—and I know how
difficult that can be—it certainly would not take him more
than 10 minutes to do so. We have an hour for the witness.

TEMOIGNAGES
(Enregistrement électronique)

[Traduction)

Le mardi 22 mai 1984

The Chairman: Order please.
A P'ordre s’il vous plait. La réunion va commencer.

Jespére qu'on a trouvé le moyen de réparer le systéme
d’amplification du son, et jespére qu'on peut entendre
'interprétation simultanée. Entendez-vous a l’arriére? Bon.
Merci beaucoup.

Le Comité reprend son étude du projet de loi C-32. Le
Comité permanent des affaires extérieures et de la défense
nationale a divisé le Comité en deux groupes. Nous sommes le
groupe B, et cela n’a rien & voir avec notre compétence; on a
divisé le Comité pour pouvoir entendre et rencontrer plus de
témoins. L’autre groupe du Comité permanent se réunit ce soir
et comme nous, entendra deux groupes de témoins. Nous
espérons pouvoir entendre au moins 20 témoins cette semaine
qui auront 'occasion d’examiner avec nous certains aspects du
projet de loi C-32.

Ce soir j'ai le plaisir et I’honneur d’accueillir un ancien
camarade 4 moi et ancien chef d’escadron, M. Gifford qui
représente les anciens combattants pour le désarmement
nucléaire multilatéral. M. Gifford était commandant d’une
escadrille de bombardiers et navigateur dans I'aviation de
reconnaissance sur Lancasters et a exécuté 49 sorties sur
I’Europe, comme on disait 4 I’époque. Il est devenu travailleur
social professionnel aprés la guerre, il a enseigné a I'Université
McGill et 4 I'Université de Montréal. Il a été directeur de
I’'Université du Manitoba et de I'Ecole des sciences sociales de
Dalhousie. Il a été conseiller des Nations Unies en matiére de
bien-étre social au Pakistan. M. et M™ Gifford ont quatre
enfants et cing petits enfants. Il est le cofondateur des anciens
combattants pour le désarmement nucléaire multilatéral.

M. Gifford est accompagné de M. Carl Birchard, travailleur
social. M™ Charlotte Birchard qui était agent des services
sociaux dans le Corps armé des femmes canadiennes est
également ici, de méme que M. Gordon Broady, qui était dans
les Home Guards en Angleterre. Les deux vivent a Ottawa et
sont membres sympathisants des Anciens combattants pour le
désarmement nucléaire multilatéral.

Nous sommes ravis de vous avoir tous ici ce soir, et nous
espérons que vous nous éclairerez dans notre étude du projet de
loi C-32.

Monsieur Gifford, nous avons distribué votre déclaration. Je
pense que vous aimeriez nous en faire un résumé.

M. Kilgour: J'invoque le Réglement, monsieur le président.

Le président: Un rappel au Réglement, monsieur Kilgour.

M. Kilgour: Si le témoin préfére lire sa déclaration plutdt
que d’essayer d’en faire un résumé, ce serait peut-étre plus
facile, et cela ne prendrait certainement pas plus de dix
minutes. Nous avons une heure 4 consacrer aux témoins.
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The Chairman: Okay. As you wish.

Mr. C.G. Gifford (Co-founder, Veterans for Multilateral
Nuclear Disarmament): I can cut it down a little.

Mr. Kilgour: Could I also propose, Mr. Chairman, that the
people with him be entitled at least to sit with him at the
table?

The Chairman: I have offered Mr. Gifford to have at least
one person sitting up with him.

Mr. Gifford: We thought the three would stay back there.
They could participate from there, could they not?

The Chairman: They would have to be close to a micro-
phone. So I would invite at least one or two to join Mr. Gifford
here. Mr. Birchard and Mr. Broady and . . .

M. Gifford: Monsieur le président et honorables membres
du Comité, je tiens a vous signaler, tout d’abord, que notre
association porte le titre d’Organisation d’anciens combattants
pour le désarmement nucléaire multilatéral. C’est un titre
assez complexe. Nous apprécions beaucoup I’occasion qui nous
est fournie de venir exprimer notre opinion au Comité, et nous
nous attendons a un échange de points de vue trés efficace.

Je regrette que notre organisation, a I’heure actuelle, ne soit
que d’expression anglaise, mais nous aurons un programme de
recrutement a ['automne par lequel nous espérons, a ce
moment-la, augmenter nos effectifs d’expression frangaise.

First, briefly, the perspective out of which we speak to you:
The four Polaris submarines belonging to the United Kingdom
can deliver the equivalent of the fire-power of 12 World War
IlIs on the Soviet Union. Fifty million people died in World
War II, 20 million of them in the Soviet Union. That is 12
World War Ils concentrated on one country—and worse than
World War IlIs because of the disgusting, cruel and indiscrimi-
nate effects of radiation.

Then we list the huge amounts of weapons we have in
addition. I am sure you are familiar with those. Some people
are not familiar with the fact that the warhead of the air-
launched cruise missile has 30 times the power of the Dresden
raid. I took part in the raid on Dresden on February 13-14,
1945, and I can describe in more detail the extent of that raid.
It was a huge raid—1,800 heavy bombers in five waves. One
cruise missile warhead has 30 times the killing power of that
raid. One B-52 bomber carrying 12 cruise missiles has 360
times the power of that one huge raid. These kinds of facts and
the senseless heaping up of these vile weapons we call crackpot
militarism.

Veterans for Multilateral Nuclear Disarmament are
convinced that unless the arms race is stopped and reversed a
disaster of unimaginable proportions will occur—not might,
but will, occur. All of us who have served in the armed forces
have experienced accidents and misjudgments at the highest
level. These are obscured in times of peace and obscured in

[Traduction]

Le président: Trés bien. Comme vous voulez.

M. C.G. Gifford (cofondateur, Ancien combattant pour le
désarmement nucléaire multilatéral): Je peux le résumer un
peu.

M. Kilgour: Pourrais-je proposer aussi, monsieur le prési-
dent, que ceux qui I'accompagnent puissent au moins s’asseoir
a ses cotés?

Le président: J'ai propos¢é a M. Gifford qu’au moins une
personne s’assoit avec lui.

M. Gifford: On a pensé que tous les trois pourraient rester
en arriére. Ils peuvent participer de 14, n’est-ce pas?

Le président: Il faudrait qu’ils se rapprochent d’un micro-
phone. Alors j’inviterais au moins une personne ou deux a se
joindre 4 M. Gifford ici. M. Birchard et M. Broady et . . .

Mr. Gifford: Mr. Chairman and hon. Committee members,
I wish to say first of all that our association is entitled
“Veterans for Multilateral Nuclear Disarmament”. It is quite
a complex title. We welcome this opportunity to offer our
views and we expect a very efficient exchange of ideas.

I regret that our organization at this point in time is made
up solely of English speaking people, but we expect to have a
membership drive in the fall which will allow us at that time to
increase our French speaking membership.

Tout d’abord, briévement, je vous exposerai notre point de
vue: les quatre sous-marins Polaris appartenant au Royaume-
Uni peuvent lancer sur I'Union soviétique I’équivalent de 12
fois la force de frappe utilisée au cours de la Seconde Guerre
Mondiale. Cinquante millions de personnes ont perdu la vie au
cours du deuxiéme conflit mondial, dont 20 millions en Union
soviétique. Cela veut dire 12 fois la force de frappe utilisée
durant la Seconde Guerre Mondiale concentrée sur un seul
pays, et pire encore, les effets répugnants, cruels et indiscrimi-
nés des rayonnements nucléaires.

Ensuite, nous vous exposons les quantités énormes d’armes
qui constituent notre arsenal. Je suis sir que vous étes au
courant. Certains ne savent pas que les ogives des missiles de
croisiere lancés par avion sont trente fois plus puissantes que
les armes qui ont servi au raid de Dresde. J’ai participé a ce
raid les 13 et 14 février 1945, et je puis vous en donner plus de
détails. C’était un énorme raid auquel ont participé 1,800
bombardiers lourds en cinq vagues. Une ogive de missile de
croisiére est trente fois plus puissante que les bombardements
de ce raid. Un bombardier B-52 transportant 12 missiles de
croisiére est 360 fois plus puissant que les armes qui ont été
utilisées au cours de ce raid. Ce genre de faits et I’escalade
insensée de ces armements font un militarisme absurde.

Les anciens combattants pour le désarmement nucléaire
multilatéral sont convaincus qu’a moins d’un relaichement de la
course aux armements, il se produira un désastre inimaginable;
on ne pourra y échapper. Tous ceux qui ont été membres des
Forces armées ont été témoins d’accidents et de mauvaises
décisions prises aux niveaux les plus hauts. On ne parle pas de
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times of victory, but there were many I could recount to you.
Now we are in a situation when one accident could bring
disaster on us all. This gives us a great sense of urgency.

We note that Canada is helping to add more and more
missiles every day and that every nuclear weapon which is
added increases the risk of accident or miscalculation, which in
turn brings the possibility of a massive nuclear exchange.

I guess you might say that we were more or less asleep to
this after the atmospheric bomb test agreement of 1963 when
we thought things were on the right track.

® 2010

But then we woke up in the late 1970s and early 1980s to
the fact that the arms race had been going on all the time.

When everybody believed that the world was flat, those who
recognized the reality that it is round were regarded as
dangerous radicals. We are now in a situation where some
people are recognizing the reality that the arms race must be
stopped and reversed, as some, especially decision makers,
have not yet recognized this reality and are still acting on
disastrously outdated beliefs, the belief that multiplication of
killing power can defend us and that the Soviet Union is
thirsting to attack western Europe. In the past, projection of
reality caused vast personal tragedies but did not risk the
ending of human history. Now, if decision makers do not shift
their views and become profoundly committed to world
disarmament, we are convinced that we all will be lost.

Now, to comment on Bill C-32. We fully support the title,
but we are concerned that the goals include study of defence
and arms control issues. The arms control approach has some
achievements to its credit, but these have been dwarfed by the
unending escalation and proliferation of new weapons tech-
nology. The arms control approach has essentially been a
compromise between the obvious dangers of the armms race
and the vested interests of militarism. This was clearly shown
by John Lamb. I went up and heard his presentation to the
other section, and I have discussed this with him, but we